ISSN 2587-1366



TURKISH JOURNAL OF ENGINEERING



VOLUME 5 ISSUE 3 JULY 2021

EDITOR IN CHIEF

Prof. Dr. Murat YAKAR Mersin University Engineering Faculty Turkey

CO-EDITORS

Prof. Dr. Erol YAŞAR Mersin University Faculty of Art and Science Turkey

Prof. Dr. Cahit BİLİM Mersin University Engineering Faculty Turkey

Assist. Prof. Dr. Hüdaverdi ARSLAN Mersin University Engineering Faculty Turkey

ADVISORY BOARD

Prof. Dr. Orhan ALTAN Honorary Member of ISPRS, ICSU EB Member Turkey

> Prof. Dr. Armin GRUEN ETH Zurih University Switzerland

Prof. Dr. Hacı Murat YILMAZ Aksaray University Engineering Faculty Turkey

Prof. Dr. Artu ELLMANN Tallinn University of Technology Faculty of Civil Engineering Estonia

> Assoc. Prof. Dr. E. Cağlan KUMBUR Drexel University USA

TECHNICAL EDITORS

Prof. Dr. Roman KOCH Erlangen-Nurnberg Institute Palaontologie Germany

Prof. Dr. Hamdalla WANAS Menoufyia University, Science Faculty Egypt

> Prof. Dr. Turgay CELIK Witwatersrand University South Africa

Prof. Dr. Muhsin EREN Mersin University Engineering Faculty Turkey

Prof. Dr. Johannes Van LEEUWEN Iowa State University USA Prof. Dr. Elias STATHATOS TEI of Western Greece Greece

Prof. Dr. Vedamanickam SAMPATH Institute of Technology Madras India

Prof. Dr. Khandaker M. Anwar HOSSAIN Ryerson University Canada

Prof. Dr. Hamza EROL Mersin University Engineering Faculty Turkey

Prof. Dr. Ali Cemal BENIM Duesseldorf University of Aplied Sciences Germany

Prof. Dr. Mohammad Mehdi RASHIDI University of Birmingham England

> Prof. Dr. Muthana SHANSAL Baghdad University Iraq

Prof. Dr. Ibrahim S. YAHIA Ain Shams University Egypt

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Kurt A. ROSENTRATER Iowa State University USA

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Christo ANANTH Francis Xavier Engineering College India

Prof. Dr. Bahadır K. KÖRBAHTİ Mersin University Engineering Faculty Turkey

Assist. Prof. Dr. Akın TATOGLU Hartford University College of Engineering USA

Assist. Prof. Dr. Şevket DEMİRCİ Mersin University Engineering Faculty Turkey

Assist. Prof. Dr. Yelda TURKAN Oregon State University USA

Assist. Prof. Dr. Gökhan ARSLAN Mersin University Engineering Faculty Turkey

Assist. Prof. Dr. Seval Hale GÜLER Mersin University Engineering Faculty Turkey

Assist. Prof. Dr. Mehmet ACI Mersin University Engineering Faculty Turkey Dr. Ghazi DROUBI Robert Gordon University Engineering Faculty Scotland, UK

JOURNAL SECRETARY

Nida DEMİRTAŞ nidademirtas@mersin.edu.tr

TURKISH JOURNAL OF ENGINEERING (TUJE)

Turkish Journal of Engineering (TUJE) is a multi-disciplinary journal. The Turkish Journal of Engineering (TUJE) publishes the articles in English and is being published 4 times (January, April, July and October) a year. The Journal is a multidisciplinary journal and covers all fields of basic science and engineering. It is the main purpose of the Journal that to convey the latest development on the science and technology towards the related scientists and to the readers. The Journal is also involved in both experimental and theoretical studies on the subject area of basic science and engineering. Submission of an article implies that the work described has not been published previously and it is not under consideration for publication elsewhere. The copyright release form must be signed by the corresponding author on behalf of all authors. All the responsibilities for the article belongs to the authors. The publications of papers are selected through double peer reviewed to ensure originality, relevance and readability.

AIM AND SCOPE

The Journal publishes both experimental and theoretical studies which are reviewed by at least two scientists and researchers for the subject area of basic science and engineering in the fields listed below:

Aerospace Engineering Environmental Engineering Civil Engineering Geomatic Engineering Mechanical Engineering Geology Science and Engineering Mining Engineering Chemical Engineering Metallurgical and Materials Engineering Electrical and Electronics Engineering Mathematical Applications in Engineering Food Engineering

PEER REVIEW PROCESS

All submissions will be scanned by iThenticate® to prevent plagiarism. Author(s) of the present study and the article about the ethical responsibilities that fit PUBLICATION ETHICS agree. Each author is responsible for the content of the article. Articles submitted for publication are priorly controlled via iThenticate ® (Professional Plagiarism Prevention) program. If articles that are controlled by iThenticate® program identified as plagiarism or self-plagiarism with more than 25% manuscript will return to the author for appropriate citation and correction. All submitted manuscripts are read by the editorial staff. To save time for authors and peer-reviewers, only those papers that seem most likely to meet our editorial criteria are sent for formal review. Reviewer selection is critical to the publication process, and we base our choice on many factors, including expertise, reputation, specific recommendations and our own previous experience of a reviewer's characteristics. For instance, we avoid using people who are slow, careless or do not provide reasoning for their views, whether harsh or lenient. All submissions will be double blind peer reviewed. All papers are expected to have original content. They should not have been previously published and it should not be under review. Prior to the sending out to referees, editors check that the paper aim and scope of the journal. The journal seeks minimum three independent referees. All submissions are subject to a double blind peer review; if two of referees gives a negative feedback on a paper, the paper is being rejected. If two of referees gives a positive feedback on a paper and one referee negative, the editor can decide whether accept or reject. All submitted papers and referee reports are archived by journal Submissions whether they are published or not are not returned. Authors who want to give up publishing their paper in TUJE after the submission have to apply to the editorial board in written. Authors are responsible from the writing quality of their papers. TUJE journal will not pay any copyright fee to authors. A signed Copyright Assignment Form has to be submitted together with the paper.

PUBLICATION ETHICS

Our publication ethics and publication malpractice statement is mainly based on the Code of Conduct and Best-Practice Guidelines for Journal Editors. Committee on Publication Ethics (COPE). (2011, March 7). Code of Conduct and Best-Practice Guidelines for Journal Editors. Retrieved from http://publicationethics.org/files/Code% 2006% 20Conduct_2.pdf

PUBLICATION FREQUENCY

The TUJE accepts the articles in English and is being published 4 times (January, April, July and October) a year.

CORRESPONDENCE ADDRESS

Journal Contact: tuje@mersin.edu.tr

CONTENTS

Volume 5 – Issue 3

ARTICLES

PRODUCTION OF NEW TYPE INSULATION MATERIAL: EXPANDED PERLITE-SILICA AEROGEL COMPOSITE
Ömer Guler, Oykum Basgoz and Cagdas Yavuz
CLIENT SATISFACTION AS PERCEIVED BY ARCHITECTS AND CIVIL ENGINEERS Hilmi Coskun and Sezer Sancar
MICROSTRUCTURAL ANALYSIS OF ZnO-CuPc NANOCOMPOSITES SYNTHENISED BY HYDROTHERMAL METHOD
Rekawt Khdir Hamad, Canan Aksu Canbay and İskender Özkul
MODELING AND SIMULATION OF DYNAMIC MECHANICAL SYSTEMS USING ELECTRIC CIRCUIT ANALOGY
Mehmet Akbaba 120
INTEGRATED AHP-FMEA RISK ASSESSMENT METHOD TO STAINLESS TANK PRODUCTION PROCESS Seçkin Çeliker, Esra Saraç Eşsiz and Murat Oturakçi
PIONEERING INSTITUTIONS IN SECTOR ON REAL ESTATE APPRAISAL Fatih Taktak and Mahir Serhan Temiz
TEMPORAL MONITORING OF LAND USE/LAND COVER CHANGE IN KAHRAMANMARAS CITY CENTER

Kubra Aliyazicioglu, Fatmanur Beker, Raziye Hale Topaloglu, Burhan Baha Bilgilioglu and Resul Comert...... 146

Turkish Journal of Engineering



Turkish Journal of Engineering (TUJE) Vol. 5, Issue 3, pp. 102-106, July 2021 ISSN 2587-1366, Turkey DOI 10.31127/tuje.674035 Research Article

PRODUCTION OF NEW TYPE INSULATION MATERIAL: EXPANDED PERLITE-SILICA AEROGEL COMPOSITE

Ömer Guler *1, Oykum Basgoz 2 and Cagdas Yavuz 3

¹Mersin University, Faculty of Engineering, Metallurgical and Material Eng. Dept, Mersin, Turkey ORCID ID 0000 – 0003 – 0190 – 9630 oguler@mersin.edu.tr

² Mersin University, Faculty of Engineering, Metallurgical and Material Eng. Dept, Mersin, Turkey ORCID ID 0000 – 0002 – 0479 - 2389 oykumbasgoz@mersin.edu.tr

> ³ Ege University, Solar Energy Institute, Izmir, Turkey ORCID ID 0000 – 0002 – 6174 – 4383 yavuz.cgds@gmail.com

* Corresponding Author Received: 13/01/2020 Accepted: 09/03/2020

ABSTRACT

Silica aerogel is a class of nanoporous material with extremely high porosity (85–99.9 %) and specific surface area (500–1200 m^2/g), as in cause very low density, low thermal conductivity. But silica aerogel have some disadvantages. One of this disadvantages is high cost. In this study, to solve this problem has been used low cost precursor which is rice husk ash. Also, we try to improve porosity. To improve the porosity we used expanded perlite (EP). To produced EP is heated the perlite to 760–1100 °C, at which point its native water is converted to vapor and the material is caused to expand to 4–20 times its original volume, then the high-porosity and lightweight aggregates are formed. In this study silica aerogels have been reinforced with EP to product new type composite material which is used as building insulation material. The prepared EP-silica aerogel composite was characterized using SEM and BET measurements.

Keywords: Expanded Perlite, Silica aerogel, Insulation building material.

1. INTRODUCTION

Kistler first introduced an idea about displacement of the liquid phase in the gel with gas in 1930s (Stolarski et al., 1999) (Kistler, 1931) (Kistler, 1932). For many years there are many potential applications for aerogel structures. These applications are listed as; heat insulation, sound insulation, oil spill cleanup, lowdielectric constant aerogel films in ultra-large integrated circuits, Cherenkov radiation detectors, electronic components, pharmaceutical distribution systems, chromatography, raw materials and synthesis for engineering rubber and ceramics adsorption (Aravind et al., 2010) (Zulfiqar et al., 2015) (Tang et al., 2017). These materials have a wide range of applications, they have very large surface area (500-100 m² g⁻¹), high porosity (% 80-99.8) and low volumetric density (0.003-0.8 g/cm³), low temperature Conductivity (0.02 W m⁻¹ K⁻¹), ultra low dielectric constant (1.0-2.0) is due to their many impressive properties (Aravind et al., 2010) (Wang J., 2015). Although silica aerogel materials that studied for many years have such widespread using area and advanced properties, these advanced properties couldn' t utilized at the desired rate in the industrial area. This is because of the aerogel has low strength, low toughness and brittle (Zhou et al., 2018) (Li et al., 2017). The reason is that silica aerogel is fragile named as "pearl necklace". These pearl necklace has 3-10 nm diameter silica nanoparticles which are connected to each other by forming narrow inter-particle necks and forming a 3dimensional network (Ma et al., 2012).

Using common organic silica sources such as tetraethoxysilane (TEOS), polyethoxydisiloxane (PEDS) for industrial scale. This situation has been limited to using of silica aerogel. To maintain the industrial application of silica aerogel, it is a priority to find a costeffective and environmentally friendly synthesis route (Feng et al., 2018). Sodium silicate has been used as precursor to produce silica in industrial production. However, sodium silicate is formed by melting quartz sand and sodium carbonate at a very high temperature of 1300 ° C and this requires a large amount of energy. This method is hazardous for the environment. Because during the producing of 1 ton of silica, 0.53 tonnes of sulfuric acid and 0.53 tonnes of sodium carbonate were used and finally were produced 0.23 tonnes of carbon dioxide (CO₂), 0.74 tonnes of sodium sulfate and 20 tonnes of waste water. In recent years, one of the most important problems in the world is the "greenhouse" effect, especially with regard to CO₂. Therefore, finding a cheap source of preparing silica will allow the producing industrial scales of the silica aerogel. For industrial production, abundant biomass wastes such as rice husk, bamboo, wheat husk were gradually recognized as precursor silica (Liou et al., 2011).

To produced expanded perlite heating perlite to 760-1100 ° C. At this temperature, the water in the perlite has been converted to steam and perlilte has a highly porous and light aggregate structure with 4-20 times increase compared to initial volume of the material (Wang *et al.*, 2018). Moreover, perlite shows chemically inert and has important properties such as fire resistant, high sound insulation. Today, approximately 65 % of the perlite producing is used by the construction industry. For insulating purpose, EP powder has been used as filler material in hollow bricks or as an additive in plasters (Pichór *et al.*, 2009). Furthermore, the porous structure of expanded perlite creates a wide application area for composite materials. For example this composite materials, silica composite for lauric–palmitic–stearic acid/expanded perlite composite, vacuum insulation panel core, a novel paraffin/EP composite, capric acid–palmitic acid/EP composite, expanded perlite/paraffin composite, sodium nitrate/EP (Wang *et al.*, 2018). SiO2 aerogel is an expensive material when used alone. But, combined by expanded perlite with silica aerogel to produce the composite material could be reduced amount of the SiO₂ aerogel and cost of the producing.

In this work, the silica aerogel was synthesized by using rice husk as starting material and reinforced the perlite to this silica aerogel and heating to 1000 °C to produce expanded perlite (EP)/silica aerogel composite. This new type composite material which can be used as building insulation material. The prepared EP-silica aerogel composite was characterized using SEM and BET.

2. EXPERIMENTAL METHOD

Rice Husk (RH) used for starting material. RH was supported from "Tat Bakliyat" company found in Mersin, Turkey. Chemicals that used in this work sodium hydroxide (NaOH) (Isolab Co.), sulfuric acid (H₂SO₄) (Merck Co.) and tetraethyl orthosilicate (TEOS) (Merck Co.). Perlite was supported from a company named as "Genperé".

In this work RH used as the starting material was first washed with distilled water and dried to remove contaminants. The RH was then heated to 600 °C for 5 hours under normal atmosphere in a muffle furnace (which would increase its SiO₂ rate). The results of XRF analysis of calcined rice husk ash shows in Table 1. SiO₂ value obtained as a result of calcination at 600 °C was 90,10 %. To carry out the extraction of silica from the synthesized rice husk ash, 5 gr rice husk ash (RHA) was extracted at 95 °C in 1 M NaOH solution of 150 ml. The sodium silicate solution obtained after it was filtered to abolish contaminants that remained as undissolved waste. The filtered sodium silicate solution was neutralized using 1 mol / liter H₂SO₄. Silica hydrosol was obtained after this process. 1/10 volume of TEOS was added to the synthesized silica hydrosol to obtain gel. After addition of TEOS, amount of 10% Perlite was added. The gel obtained after this process kept at room temperature for 24 hours to carry out the aging step. It was then washed using de-ionized water to remove unwanted impurities from the aging gel structure. The washed gel was dried for 1 hour at 120 ° C to obtain the final drying step and silica aerogel composite. After drying, it was heated to 1000 ° C to obtained the expanded perlite in the composite and for increase the porosity in the structure. Fig. 3 shows the flow diagram compiling the production of perlite/ silica aerogel composite.

The prepared EP-silica aerogel composite was characterized using SEM and BET measurements.

(% mass)	600 °C - 5sa
Na ₂ O	0,096
MgO	0,76
Al ₂ O ₃	0,35
SiO ₂	90,10
P2O5	0,97
SO ₃	0,53
Cl	0,31
K ₂ O	5,15
CaO	1,36
MnO	0,15
Fe ₂ O ₃	0,24
ZnO	0,014





Fig. 1. Flowchart for preparing SiO_2 aerogel from rice husk ash -perlite composite

3. RESULTS

Figure 1. a shows the SEM images of pure SiO_2 aerogel and Figure 1. b, c shows the Perlite / SiO_2 aerogel composite. The resulting SEM image is similar to a conventional airgel image. Because in aerogels, there is a chain-like arrangement of nano-sized particles. The resulting structure consists of many grains diffused into one another by the effect of high temperature. Aerogel structures combined with the effect of temperature to form larger structures.

There are also many gaps between these particles. Dark colored parts indicated by arrows in the structure are unexpanded perlite added to aerogel. While this structure is expected to have a very high porosity, the amount of pores is negligible as can be seen from the figure. This can be explained by the fact that the unexpanded perlite contained in the aerogel does not expand even after heating to 1000 °C. Although this temperature is suitable for explosion of perlite, there is no expansion of perlite at this temperature; can be explained by the lack of time. It also suggests that the non-explosion of unexpanded pertlite surrounded by aerogels may be caused by inhibition of aerogels. In addition, in our previous study, after drying of silica aerogel at 120 °C, heat treatment under 1000 °C resulted in nano stalactite structures (Basgoz et al., 2020). The operating temperature of 1000 °C was particularly selected in this study. There are two reasons for this, one of these; conversion of perlite to expanded perlite; the second reason is to increase the porosity of the composite material to be obtained as a result of the formation of nano stalactite structures similar to the previous temperature. However, in this study, similar structures were not seen on SEM images in the process performed under 1000 °C. This is due to the fact that perlite inside the structure does not allow the formation of nano stalactites. Because, in our study where nano stalactite structures were seen, the reason for the formation of these structures was that TEOS converted to SiO₂ and Diethyl Ether at temperatures above 600 °C (Nurkowski et al., 2016), when this aerogel was placed in the oven the reaction occurred firstly and the resulting Diethyl Ether burned with the impact of the air and boosted the temperature of the particles in micron size caused by the formation of melting particles together with each other grew and formed a network-shaped structure. Gases from ignition of diethyl ether and air trapped in SiO₂ particles by cause of rapid melting. If the time is enough, the volume of the gases trapped in the molten SiO₂ increases up to 800% because of the heat. Due to this expansion, the particles began to swell like a balloon. Under the effect of temperature, these particles also convert to Cristobalite structure. But, due to the high strength of the silicas, the internal air pressure cannot ecplode the swollen silicas. They appear with cracks on the surface. In this work, perlite prevented this formation.





The N₂ adsorption / desorption isotherms of the silica aerogel-perlite composite are given in Figure 2. The isotherm obtained according to IUPAC classification complies with type IV. Silica airgel appears to be mesoporous (ALOthman *et al.*, 2012). The BET value of silica airgel-pearlite composite was found 30,6762 m²/g.



Fig. 2. N_2 adsorption / desorption isotherm of Perlite-SiO₂ composite

Pore structure parameters for pure SiO^2 aerogel and Perlite / SiO_2 aerogel composite are given in Table 2. Adsorption average pore diameter 90.5627A°, Maximum pore volume 0.546639 cm³/g and BET Surface Area value was determined as 241.441 m²/g for pure SiO₂ aerogel. For Perlite / SiO₂ aerogel composite, these values were found as 62,1846 A°, 0.047690 cm³/g and 30.6762 m²/g, respectively. BET Surface Area value decreased as a result of perlite addition. This is considered to be due to the addition of perlite, and the main reason is believed to be the elevation of the sample to 1000 °C for the expansion of perlite in the perlite-silica aerogel composite. Due to the air trapped between the particles of aerogels with this temperature, the gap decreased with the growth and association of aerogels and caused the BET area to decrease. Pre-widening the perlite and reinforcing it to Silica aerogel will improve the properties of the composite.

In this study, particle size of perlite scattered in the composite and surrounded by aerogel nanoparticle is approximately 5 μ m. SEM images suggest that perlite additive increases the particle size of the composite and decreases accordingly in the BET surface area. This is consistent with the relationship between specific surface area and particle size reported in the literature (Gregg *et al*, 1967), (Yang *et al.*, 2020).

Table 2. Pore structure values of Pure SiO_2 Aerogel and Perlite/SiO₂ aerogel composite.

	Pure SiO ₂ Aerogel	Perlite/SiO ₂ Aerogel Composite
Adsorption Average Pore Diameter (A°)	90,5627	62,1846
Pore Volume (cm ³ /g)	0,546639	0,047690
BET Surface Area (m²/g)	241,4410	30,6762

4. CONCLUSIONS

Reinforcing expanded perlite to silica aerogels can both reduce the cost of silica aerogels and increase the application areas. For this purpose, silica aerogels were produced from paddy husk and it was aimed to expand the perlite by increasing the composite to 1000 °C by adding unexpanded perlite structure. However, exposure of silica aerogels at this temperature has been shown to reduce the BET surface area expected to increase and has lost its properties. In addition, silica aerogels made it difficult to expand perlite at this temperature. Apart from this method, it has been concluded that better results can be obtained by producing composite using different methods

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The authors would like to acknowledge the financial support of Mersin University Department of Scientific Research Projects (Project No: 2019-3-TP3-3764).

REFERENCES

ALOthman, Z. (2012). A review: fundamental aspects of silicate mesoporous materials. *Materials*, 5(12), 2874-2902.

Başgöz, Ö., & Güler, Ö. (2020). The unusually formation of porous silica nano-stalactite structure by high temperature heat treatment of SiO2 aerogel synthesized from rice hull. *Ceramics International*, *46*(1), 370-380.

Daniel Nurkowski, Philipp Buerger, Jethro Akroyd, Sebastian Mosbach, Markus Kraft, Skeletal chemical mechanism of high-temperature TEOS oxidation in hydrogen–oxygen environment, Combustion and Flame, Volume 166, April 2016, Pages 243-254.

Feng, Q., Chen, K., Ma, D., Lin, H., Liu, Z., Qin, S., & Luo, Y. 2018. "Synthesis of high specific surface area silica aerogel from rice husk ash via ambient pressure drying", Colloids and Surfaces A: Physicochemical and Engineering Aspects, 539, 399-406.

Gregg, S. J., Sing, K. S. W., & Salzberg, H. W. (1967). Adsorption surface area and porosity. *Journal of The Electrochemical Society*, *114*(11), 279C-279C.

Kistler, S. S. 1931. "Coherent expanded aerogels and jellies" Nature, 127(3211), 741.

Kistler, S. S. 1932. "Coherent expanded-aerogels", The Journal of Physical Chemistry, 36(1), 52-64.

Aravind, P. R., Shajesh, P., Soraru, G. D., & Warrier, K. G. K. 2010. "Ambient pressure drying: a successful approach for the preparation of silica and silica based mixed oxide aerogels", Journal of sol-gel science and technology, 54(1), 105-117.

Li, C., Cheng, X., Li, Z., Pan, Y., Huang, Y., & Gong, L. 2017. "Mechanical, thermal and flammability properties of glass fiber film/silica aerogel composites", Journal of Non-Crystalline Solids, 457, 52-59.

Liou, T. H., & Yang, C. C. 2011. "Synthesis and surface characteristics of nanosilica produced from alkaliextracted rice husk ash", Materials science and engineering: B, 176(7), 521-529.

Ma, X., Zhou, B., Gao, W., Qu, Y., Wang, L., Wang, Z., & Zhu, Y. 2012. "A recyclable method for production of pure silica from rice hull ash", Powder Technology, 217, 497-501.

Pichór, W., & Janiec, A. (2009). Thermal stability of expanded perlite modified by mullite. Ceramics International, 35(1), 527-530.

Stolarski, M., Walendziewski J., Steininger M., Pniak B. 1999. "Synthesis and characteristic of silica aerogels", Applied Catalysis A: General, 177(2), 139-148.

Tang, X., Sun, A., Chu, C., Yu, M., Ma, S., Cheng, Y., Guo, J., Xu, G. 2017. "A novel silica nanowire-silica composite aerogels dried at ambient pressure", Materials & Design, 115, 415-421.

Wang, L., Li, Z., Jing, Q., & Liu, P. (2018). Synthesis of composite insulation materials—expanded perlite filled with silica aerogel. Journal of Porous Materials, 25(2), 373-382.

Wang, J., Zhang, Y., Wei, Y., Zhang, X. 2015. "Fast and one-pot synthesis of silica aerogels via a quasi-solventexchange-free ambient pressure drying process", Microporous and Mesoporous Materials, 218, 192-198.

Yang, H., Li, C., Yue, X., Huo, J., Ye, F., Liu, J., ... & Ma, J. (2020). New BN/SiOC aerogel composites fabricated by the sol-gel method with excellent thermal insulation performance at high temperature. *Materials & Design*, *185*, 108217.

Zhou, T., Cheng, X., Pan, Y., Li, C., Gong, L., & Zhang, H. 2018. "Mechanical performance and thermal stability of glass fiber reinforced silica aerogel composites based on co-precursor method by freeze drying", Applied Surface Science, 437, 321-328.

Zulfiqar, U., Subhani, T., & Husain, S. W. 2015. "Towards tunable size of silica particles from rice husk", Journal of Non-Crystalline Solids, 429, 61-69.

Turkish Journal of Engineering



Turkish Journal of Engineering (TUJE) Vol. 5, Issue 3, pp. 107-112, July 2021 ISSN 2587-1366, Turkey DOI 10.31127/tuje.688291 Research Article

CLIENT SATISFACTION AS PERCEIVED BY ARCHITECTS AND CIVIL ENGINEERS

Hilmi Coskun¹, Sezer Sancar^{*2}

¹ Iskenderun Technical University, Civil Engineering Department, Faculty of Engineering and Natural Sciences, Iskenderun, Hatay, Turkey ORCID ID 0000 – 0003 – 3667 – 6945 e-mail: hilmi.coskun@iste.edu.tr

² Iskenderun Technical University, Civil Engineering Department, Faculty of Engineering and Natural Sciences, Iskenderun, Hatay, Turkey ORCID ID 0000 – 0003 – 4119 - 0173 e-mail: sezer.sancar@iste.edu.tr

* Corresponding Author				
Received: 12/02/2020 Accepted: 25/04/2020				

ABSTRACT

A construction project fulfills both the product design and the service provision functions. There are many stakeholders in these processes. Concurrence among the stakeholders surely affects the success of the project. The most important of the stakeholders is customer/client followed by architects and civil engineers. Both architects and civil engineers are involved in the design phase as well as in the execution phase. Customer/client satisfaction is usually considered one of the success criteria of the project. This criterion, however, is a subjective concept, about which tangible values cannot be easily placed, and is determined by perception at best. Whether this perception vary between civil engineers and architects depending on different criteria, is examined in this study. The results of the questionnaires were evaluated statistically. The agreed upon and the most important issues are working together and sharing information. The behavior of client/customer and qualification of employees are the factors that civil engineers and architects do not have the same views on client satisfaction.

Keywords: Project Success, Stakeholders, Collaboration, Construction, Concurrent Engineering

1. INTRODUCTION

Different groups are involved in different processes of a construction project. The fulfillment in each of these processes by these groups plays a part in the success of the project. A comparison between the two groups, who are the most likely to be involved in management of the project may yield useful information. One of these two groups is the architects while the other group is the civil engineers. It is certainly important that these groups fulfill their professions, but it is also desirable to study their affects on project output since these groups can be in managerial positions. A project manager has many responsibilities starting from the planning of the project to its completion. In general, it can be said that architects are involved in a construction project since the project emerges as a concept. The architects' participation in the project can also be as the customer representative in the design and construction stages (Burr, 2010; Berman, 2002). In the course of mobilization and implementation, civil engineers undertake more functions compared to architects, including project management (Haltenhoff, 1986). It has been shown that the contribution of the project manager is great for the successful completion of a project (Prabhakar, 2009). On the other hand, the project manager's perception of success may also differ in the subsequent processes of construction and delivery (Shenhar, 1997).

The success of a construction project depends on many criteria. Success can also be expressed or defined using many different criteria. It is natural that every stakeholder involved in the project wants to measure success differently (Khan & Spang, 2013). One study has reviewed the literature about the project's success (Ika, 2009). According to this study, we are not yet aware of the relationship between customer satisfaction and criteria used by project management. As researchers said that the project management should be subjectively evaluated by all groups involved and at the same time the contribution of all stakeholders should be considered. In another study, concurrent engineering practice in construction projects was evaluated considering stakeholders' involvement. In this context, it was emphasized that the contribution of customer requirements to collaborative team work was important (Kamara, 2000). Accordingly, information sharing among stakeholders could be realized, for example, using the virtual reality environment. In one such study, a virtual reality system which could provide information sharing between the office and the construction site has been investigated (Capra, 2010). In one other study, a model was developed to at least estimate the results of a planning process that would support designers to work together and collaborate (Bletzinger, 2006).

Collaboration among different groups, including customers, might be expected to increase the level of project performance and satisfaction (Baiden, 2006). First, however, it was necessary to know the groups or stakeholders affected by customer satisfaction (Brockmann, 2002). It has been argued for that the coordination among the groups could be further increased by the clear identification of stakeholders (Aapaoja, 2014). In another study, project performance was assessed based on a comparison of competitive and collaborative working environments (Ruan, 2012). In many studies, customer satisfaction has been taken into consideration (Kärnä et al., 2004; Maloney, 2002; Capra, 2010; Kärnä, 2004; Soetanto et al., 2001), meanwhile in some other studies the contractor satisfaction with customer performance has been investigated (Soetanto & Proverbs, 2002).

As a measure of success, completion of work within the budget or within the scheduled time period can be considered. Another measure is that the manufactured product meets the needs of the user in the long run. In one study, the contribution of the groups in the project to the realization of the long-term business goals was examined (Rowland, 2006). It has been explained that groups and especially project managers should be aware that this contribution was not limited to only time, budget and quality, but also that they had to make as much as possible to realize all business objectives. While the use of the duration or budget limit provides a tangible measure, the satisfaction of the user or the business owner is more abstract concept (Soetanto & Proverbs, 2002). Sometimes a project is over-budget and it is completed too late but it may still be considered successful by certain groups. In addition, some other factors such as work safety, legal aspects, effects on environment and productivity can be evaluated for success as well as budget and duration (Chovichien, 2013). As pointed out by another study, stakeholder perceptions of success could vary (Chan, 2001). Accordingly, the main concerns for architects are aesthetics and functionality rather than costs.

While efforts on customer satisfaction are done in other sectors, the performance evaluation in construction projects is traditionally limited to time, budget, and quality. Nonetheless, the customer satisfaction in construction projects was examined in some research (Kärnä, 2009). The client's perception of project success can vary depending on different factors, including the client him/herself, the project, and the stakeholders of the project (Chan, 2001). It is also necessary that the project is fully understood by the client (Soetanto et al., 2001). In short, the answer to the question of what success is or how to measure it can be very elusive.

2. PURPOSE OF THE STUDY

Everyone involved in construction of a building want the project be considered successful. Different groups or stakeholders, however, have also their own agendas and measure the outcome or success of the project differently. Client satisfaction during and at the end of a project may be seen as one of the important criteria. Work environment, relationships between different groups, needs, and views affect the success of a project. Because of the difference in perception of different groups, this study focuses especially on client satisfaction as a perception of success instead of how to measure success. In this study, it is desired to examine whether there is a change in the opinions of architects and civil engineers regarding customer/client satisfaction. In particular, the relationship between success perceptions and stakeholder relationships is emphasized. The opinions of the mentioned groups toward work environment are also examined.

3. METHODOLOGY

The data examined in this study were derived from the data of a larger study (Coskun 2016; Genç, 2017). The questionnaire were held out to civil engineers and architects asking their perceptions about working conditions and project outcomes. In the survey, civil engineers and architects were asked the similar questions. The cooperative working of stakeholders in a project and the project outputs among which is client/customer satisfaction that could be obtained as a result of this collaborative environment were asked in the survey. The cross-data analyzes were made between the answers they gave about working relations among stakeholders and the customer satisfaction. Thus, the relations between the opinions of the specified groups were tried to be determined.

There were 176 civil engineers and 103 architects responding to the survey. The questions posed in the questionnaire are the likelihood (1: strongly probable, 2: probable, 3: undecided, 4: not likely, 5: very unlikely) of client/customer satisfaction as one of the consequences of the difficulties in collaboration of stakeholders starting from the design stage to the project execution process. People are asked to rank (1: not important, 2: partly important, 3: important, 4: quite important, 5: very important) the different types of difficulties encountered during the implementation of such a cooperative environment from the design phase until completion. The questions require people to express their subjective opinions. There are eight questions about the stakeholders. The factors examined are:

• Fac1: Insufficient use of computer technology in design, manufacturing, and sharing all kinds of information

• Fac2: The lack of participation of the customer to the design process

• Fac3: Lack of participation of professional groups, which will be involved in implementation, to the design team as a result of separation of design and manufacturing phases in projects

• Fac4: Non-developed culture of information sharing and ideas between stakeholders (such as in concurrent engineering)

• Fac5: Attitudes and behavior of owner (such as, changes in production line and specification, and failure in doing timely payments)

•Fac6: Inadequacies of employees (skills, knowledge, personality, honesty, performance, and so on.)

• Fac7: Mistrust, fear and the habit of not saying about the mistakes among the people who worked in the project during both the design and the construction phases

• Fac8: The cultural problems among the professional

Table 1. Summary of chi-square tests for in-between groups

groups of the project

In the expected project outputs part of the questionnaire, the ratings of customer satisfaction are included. The expected client satisfaction can be the result of the conditions of working environment. Participants are asked that with the favorable or collaborative working conditions how much client/customer satisfaction can be expected.

4. ANALYSIS AND RESULTS

4.1. The Relation Between Factor Levels and Perceived Client Satisfaction Levels: Chi-Square Tests

The values given in the tables are found by considering the responses given by one person to both factors (cross-examination). The top rows of the tables show the ratings given for customer satisfaction; they are given as (1: strongly probable, 2: probable, 3: undecided, 4: not likely, 5: very unlikely). In the left side columns of the tables, there are rating values for the examined factor; they are given as (1: not important, 2: partly important, 3: important, 4: quite important, 5: very important). Row and column totals are given in the right column and the bottom row, respectively.

The expected customer satisfaction was compared with each of the eight factors for each level in the crossexamination. Chi-square statistic was used in the analysis. Evaluated null and alternative hypotheses are;

$$H_{o}: p_{ij} = p_{i} \cdot p_{j}$$

 $H_1: p_{ij} \neq p_{i.} \cdot p_{.j}$

where pi. is row probability, p. j is column probability, and pij is the probability value for the cell i and j. This hypothesis is referred to as the "r x c" contingency table (Steel, 1997).

In addition to p-values, the level of independence between columns and rows can be specified by the phicoefficient (Steel, 1997). Phi-coefficient is given as equation (1).

$$\Phi = \sqrt{\frac{X^2}{n}} \tag{1}$$

The phi-coefficient can have values between 0 and 1, and values close to 1 indicate strong affinity. The calculated phi-coefficients shown in Table 1 also indicate that the dependencies between columns and rows are not strong.

Civil Engineers				Architects	
Items	P Value	Phi Coefficient	Factor	P Value	Phi Coefficient
Fac5	0,943	0,216	Fac6	0,946	0,280
Fac1	0,897	0,231	Fac1	0,819	0,324
Fac7	0,782	0,255	Fac7	0,651	0,359
Fac8	0,727	0,264	Fac8	0,536	0,380
Fac2	0,725	0,264	Fac2	0,524	0,382
Fac3	0,496	0,296	Fac3	0,242	0,436
Fac4	0,482	0,298	Fac5	0,216	0,442
Fac6	0,409	0,308	Fac4	0,204	0,445

Row or column totals and ratios in the tables can be used to calculate the ratio or probability of a cell in the table. In this case, the probabilities in table cells can be calculated as pij = pi. p.j.. The cell probabilities can be calculated in this way since the p-values are not closer to zero than one and the null hypothesis is accepted.

According to Table 1, the dependency (or independence) status between some factors and customer satisfaction among groups is different in some factors while that dependency status is in the same order in some other factors. The greatest difference between the two groups is related to the Fac5 and Fac6 factors. For the civil engineer, the independence situation is more pronounced in Fac5 (inadequacies of employees, such as skills, knowledge, personality, honesty, performance, and so on.) but it is the opposite for architects.

For civil engineers; if Fac5 and the response rates for customer satisfaction are assumed to be as in the table, the table cells can be filled in such a way that they are multiplied. But if the response rates for Fac6 and customer satisfaction are assumed to be as in the table, the table cells cannot be filled in such a way that they will multiply meaning that there is an interaction between these two ratios. The table therefore can only be filled out by thinking that there may be other interactions in the background.

4.2 Difference Between Opinions of Civil Engineers And Architects: Comparison of Group Means (Student's t Tests)

While it is shown that there is no relationship between factors and customer satisfaction, there may be a background relationship between the rates for factor levels and the levels of customer satisfaction. Subsequently, it is also tried to determine whether there is a difference in the importance given to the factors that affect customer satisfaction between civil engineers and architects. Using all the data, the arithmetic means of the responses to the ratings given for each customer satisfaction (1: strongly probable, 2: probable, 3: undecided, 4: not likely, 5: very probable) are compared. The hypothesis that the mean of the factors is equal to one another (student's t-test) (Ho: $\mu 1=\mu 2$) is tested assuming

different variances ($\sigma 1 \neq \sigma 2$) of two-populations.

When the data were examined, it appeared that there was a difference between the average scores of the two groups at each level. With a few minor differences in mind, these findings could be summarized in the following way as in Table 2.

	1	2	3	4	5
Fac1	same	not same	same	not same	same
Fac2	almost	same	not same	same	same
Fac3	not same	not same	not same	not same	not same
Fac4	not same	not same	not same	not same	not same
Fac5	almost	not same	not same	not same	not same
Fac6	not same	almost	not same	not same	not same
Fac7	same	same	same	same	almost
Fac8	same	same	same	same	same

It can be seen that some factors (Fac1: insufficient use of computer technology in design, manufacturing, and sharing all kinds of information; Fac2: the lack of participation of the customer to the design process; Fac7:mistrust, fear and the habit of not saying about the mistakes among the people who worked in the project during both the design and construction phases; and Fac8:the cultural problems among the professional groups of the project) similarly influence customer satisfaction in varying proportions among both architects and civil engineers.

According to findings, both groups agree that working together of stakeholders and that sharing information during this collaboration is important and also that the problems between groups also affect customer satisfaction.

Since some of the factors (Fac1, Fac2, Fac7, and Fac8) have the same implication by both groups, more attention should be paid to these factors. Paying more attention to these factors may not be challenging at all because it means that both groups think the same. However, when we look at the other factors (Fac3, Fac4, Fac5, and Fac6), there are disagreements. Perhaps the differences develop from the work areas of architects and civil engineers; such as architects have generally closer ties to the client/customer, but civil engineers are more

occupied on site and closer to other occupational groups; architects attach more importance to design but civil engineers gives greater consideration to construction. Because of these kinds of differences, the views on working together may be also different.

The influences of some factors (Fac3:lack of participation of professional groups, which will be involved in implementation, to the design team as a result of separation of design and manufacturing phases in projects; Fac4:non-developed culture of information sharing and ideas between stakeholders in concurrent engineering; Fac5:attitudes and behavior of owner, such as, changes in production line and specification, and failure in doing timely payments; and Fac6:inadequacies of employees (skills, knowledge, personality, honesty, performance, and so on.) on customer satisfaction at varying rates can be seen in both the architects' and the civil engineers' opinions.

5. CONCLUSION

According to the results of the contingency tables, it is not possible to determine or estimate customer satisfaction based on the importance ratings given to the factors.

Although not predictable, the opinions of architects

and civil engineers differ at least for two factors. For civil engineers, Fac5 based prediction can be made, whereas no prediction based on Fac6 is possible. The opposite is true for architects.

The ratings for some factors ("Fac3", "Fac4", "Fac5", and "Fac6") and client satisfaction ratings were found to be different between civil engineer and architect groups by hypothesis tests of equality of means.

For some factors ("Fac1", "Fac2", "Fac7", "Fac8"), it was seen that the differences were not great (hypothesis tests of equality of means). These two stakeholder groups (architects and civil engineers) have a consensus on these factors, indicating that customer satisfaction may be more likely to be achieved if these factors are focused on. In this case, the more efficient use of computer technology at each step of the construction process may help to increase the client satisfaction. Participation of the client in the design process can also be an effective way to increase client satisfaction. If the disagreement over factor "Fac3" is taken into consideration, the involvement of the client in the design process seems to be more important factor than the other stakeholders' involvement. It can be said that factor " Fac7" is a subgroup of factor " Fac8", in which case it may be appropriate to create a more shared and open working environment, where communication channels work more effectively, among all stakeholders.

The results can also be interpreted as follows: an architect or a civil engineer can be chosen as project manager. If there are differences of approach among these groups and if these differences are recognized or known more precisely then the manager selection can be done more appropriately. If the project specific features (such as work environment, project team, information systems) can be known beforehand, then an architect or a civil engineer can be selected to work with as a project manager to assure a better client satisfaction.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Authors thank to Ercan Erdis for allowing the use of some data from the survey and to Olcay Genc for the contribution in the preparation of the questionnaires.

REFERENCES

Aapaoja, A., Haapasalo, H. (2014). A framework for stakeholder identification and classification in construction projects. Open Journal of Business and Management, 2(01), 43-55.

Baiden, B. K., Price, A.D., Dainty, A. R. (2006). The extent of team integration within construction projects. International Journal of Project Management, 24(1), 13-23.

Berman, G. S. (2002). The morphing of the architect's role and how it is impacting the CM. CM ejournal Presented At Construction Management Association of America, October, 13-15.

Bletzinger, K. U., Lähr, A. (2006). Prediction of interdisciplinary consequences for decisions in AEC design processes. Journal of Information Technology in Construction (ITcon), 11(38), 529-545.

Brockmann, C. (2002). Modeling customer satisfaction for the AEC industry. AACE International Transactions, PM161.

Burr, K. L., Jones, C. B. (2010). The role of the architect: Changes of the past, practices of the present, and indications of the future. International Journal of Construction Education and Research, 6(2), 122-138.

Capra, M. (2010). Collaborative Mixed Reality Environments: An Application for Civil Engineering. PhD thesis, University of Nottingham, UK.

Chan, A. (2001). Framework for measuring success of construction projects. Report 2001-003-C-01. Queensland University of Technology.

Chovichien, V., Nguyen, T. A. (2013). List of indicators and criteria for evaluating construction project success and their weight assignment. In Proceedings of the 4th International Conference on Engineering Project and Production Management.

Coşkun, H., Erdiş, E., Genç, O. (2016). Improving the performance of construction projects by employing concurrent engineering. Çukurova University Journal of the Faculty of Engineering and Architecture, 31(2), 47-58.

Genç, O., Erdiş, E., Çoşkun, H. (2017). İnşaat mühendisleri özelinde eşzamanlı mühendislik yaklaşımının irdelenmesi. Çukurova Üniversitesi Mühendislik-Mimarlık Fakültesi Dergisi, 31(1), 31-38.

Haltenhoff, C.E. (1986). Educating professional construction managers. Journal of Construction Engineering and Management. 112(2), 153-162.

Ika, L. A. (2009). Project success as a topic in project management journals. Project Management Journal, 40(4), 6-19.

Kamara, J.M., Anumba, C.J., Evbuomwan, N.F.O. (2000). Establishing and processing client requirements- a key aspect of concurrent engineering in construction. Engineering, Construction and Architectural Management, 7(1), 15-28.

Kärnä, S. (2004). Analysing customer satisfaction and quality in construction- the case of public and private customers. Nordic Journal of Surveying and Real Estate Research - Special Series, 2.

Kärnä, S., Junnonen, J. M., Kankainen, J. (2004). Customer satisfaction in construction. In Proceedings of the 12th Annual Conference of the International Group for Lean Construction, 476-488, August.

Kärnä, S. (2009). Concepts and Attributes of Customer Satisfaction in Construction. Doctoral Dissertation. Helsinki University of Technology.

Khan, R. A., Spang, K. (2013). An exploratory study of the association of project success with project characteristics and organization maturity. In International Conference on New Challenges of Economic and Business Development, May. Maloney, W. F. (2002). Construction product/service and customer satisfaction. Journal of Construction Engineering and Management. 128(6), 522-529.

Prabhakar, G. P. (2009). Projects and their management: A literature review. International Journal of Business and Management, 3(8), 3-10.

Rowland, C. (2006). Optimizing the Project Team's Contribution to Business Objectives. Master of Science Thesis. Clemson University.

Ruan, X., Ochieng, E. G., Price, A. D., Egbu, C. O. (2012). Knowledge integration process in construction projects: a social network analysis approach to compare competitive and collaborative working. Construction Management and Economics, 30(1), 5-19.

Shenhar, A. J., Levy, O., Dvir, D. (1997). Mapping the dimensions of project success. Project Management Journal, 28(2), 5-13.

Soetanto, R., Proverbs, D. G., Holt, G. D. (2001). Achieving quality construction projects based on harmonious working relationships - clients ' and architects ' perceptions of contractor performance. International Journal of Quality & Reliability Management, 18(5), 528-548.

Soetanto, R., Proverbs, D. G. (2002). Modelling the satisfaction of contractors: The impact of client performance. Engineering Construction and Architectural Management, 9(5-6), 453-465.

Steel, R. G., Torrie, J. H., Dickey, D. A. (1997). Principles and Procedures of Statistics: A Biometrical Approach, McGraw-Hill, NewYork, USA.

Turkish Journal of Engineering



Turkish Journal of Engineering (TUJE) Vol. 5, Issue 3, pp. 113-119, July 2021 ISSN 2587-1366, Turkey DOI 10.31127/tuje.695630 Research Article

MICROSTRUCTURAL ANALYSIS OF ZnO-CuPc NANOCOMPOSITES

SYNTHENISED BY HYDROTHERMAL METHOD

Rekawt Khdir HAMAD¹, Canan Aksu CANBAY*², İskender ÖZKUL³

¹Fırat University, Faculty of Science, Department of Physics, Elazığ, Turkey ORCID ID 0000-0003-3804-022X rekawtphysic@gmail.com

²Fırat University, Faculty of Science, Department of Physics, Elazığ, Turkey ORCID ID 0000-0002-5151-4576 caksu@firat.edu.tr

³Mersin University, Engineering Faculty, Department of Mechanical Engineering, Mersin, Turkey ORCID ID 0000-0003-4255-0564 iskender@mersin.edu.tr

*Corresponding Author				
	Received: 27/02/2020	Accepted: 21/04/2020		

ABSTRACT

With the discovery of inorganic semiconductors, silicon and germanium became very important materials in the field of electronics. The use of these materials with these limited features for a long time has become insufficient in the face of increasing demands. For this reason, organic semiconductors have revolutionized structures that respond to these demands. In this study, we synthesized ZnO based semi-material with the hydrothermal method. Structural characterizations were made by XRD, SEM (EDX) and FTIR.

Keywords: Composite, Hydrothermal method, Structural characterization, EDX, XRD, SEM

1. INTRODUCTION

Semiconductor materials are frequently used in electronics field in the world. Thanks to this equipment used in different signal collector sensors in renewable energy applications, sectors such as computers and medical nuclear have made remarkable progress (Kahraman *et al.* 2014). Generally, inorganic semiconductor materials are used in these applications. Elements such as silicon or germanium play the main role in the formation of these components. However, the fact that the studies with these materials are close to the saturation level requires different searches. Organic materials are the best alternative for this situation and are accepted. In many electronic and optoelectronic applications, inorganic semiconductors (polymeric / non-polymeric) have started to take their place.

Hydrocarbons such as Anthracene and phthalocyanine may show semiconductor properties. The main feature of semiconductors is electrical conductivity, which depends on the mobility and concentration of charge carriers. Organic semiconductors' electrical conductivity, carrier concentrations, and mobility are lower than that of inorganic semiconductors. A comparison of the properties of an organic conductor, Copper phthalocyanine and inorganic semiconductor germanium is given in Table 1.

Table 1.Comparison of the electrical properties of the inorganic semiconductor germanium and organic semiconductor CuPc(Heilmeier *et al.* 1963; Xavier 1997).

Properties	Inorganic	Organic
Mobility (cm ² / V. Sec)	3900	1
Carrier concentration (cm ⁻³)	2.5 x 10 ¹³	10 ⁶ to 10 ⁷
Trap density (cm ⁻³)	-	10 ¹² to 10 ¹⁴
Resistivity (ohm . cm)	43	10^{14}
Bandgap (eV)	0.67	1.6
Density (g/cm ³)	5.32	1.6

ZnO based composites attracted the attention of researchers (Güler *et al.* 2016; Güler *et al.* 2019). For this research study, our aim is to produce ZnO based composite materials in different compositions by hydrothermal method which is the new production method. Following the production, the structural and morphological properties of the obtained composite materials were investigated. These analyses were conducted with X-Ray Diffraction (XRD), scanning electron microscopy (SEM) and Fourier transform infrared (FTIR) analysis.

2. EXPERIMENTAL

In this work, Zinc acetate $Zn(CH3COO)_2$ and sodium hydroxide NaOH were used. Zinc acetate was dissolved in distilled water. Then, sodium hydroxide 0.85gm was dissolved in 20 ml distilled water, separately and stirring during 1h on the magnetic stirrer. After this, the two solutions put into the same cup, placed into hydrothermal equipment at 160 °C and stayed for 12 h. Then we open the hydrothermal system and the final solution was transferred to autoclave and heated material dried at 100°C for 24h. In this study, four different samples were produced, and details are given as below; Sample 1: $ZnO_{0.01}$ Mix with 2ml C₆H₅Cl inside a cup.

Sample 1: $ZnO_{0.01}$ Mix with $ZuPc_{0.001}$ and $2ml C_6H_5Cl$ inside a cup, since a cup,

Sample 3: $ZnO_{0.01}$ Mix with CuPc_{0.002} and 2ml C₆H₅Cl inside a cup,

Sample 4: $ZnO_{0.01}$ Mix with CuPc_{0.003} and 2ml C₆H₅Cl inside the cup.

After the production of the samples, we made the XRD, FTIR, SEM and EDX analysis.

3.RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

3.1. X-ray Diffraction Analysis

The X-ray measurements of the samples were made at room temperature to determine the diffraction planes. The X-ray diffraction pattern of pure CuPc is given in Fig. 1 (Hussein *et al.* 2016).



Fig. 1. The XRD spectrum for CuPc powder

Fig.2 shows the X-ray diffraction patterns for ZnO-CuPc composite thin films deposited on a glass substrate. The prepared ZnO-CuPc nanocomposite diffraction pattern displays the hexagonal ZnO phase and for Cu-Pc has different crystal phases: α -, β - and χ - phases. All the peaks of the ZnO thin films correspond to the peaks of ZnO (JCPDS # 0.36-1451). Peaks ZnO was signed by (*) and peaks CuPc was signed by (+).



Fig. 2. Diffraction pattern for (a)Pure ZnO, (b)ZnO0.01CuPc0.001, (c)ZnO0.01CuPc0.002, (d)ZnO0.01CuPc0.003

The value of d-spacing, relative intensity and FWHM corresponding to Xray diffraction for all four samples have been tabulated in Table 3. It is found the value dspacing by this equation.

$$n\lambda = 2d\sin\theta \tag{1}$$

The crystallites sizes (D) of the films are estimated using the Scherrer formula (Scherrer 1918).

$$D = \frac{\kappa\lambda}{\beta \cos\left(\theta\right)}$$
(2)

Where λ is the wavelength of X-Ray used ($\lambda = 1.54$ Å), k is shape factor constant taken to be 0.94, θ is diffracting angle and β is the full width at half maximum of peaks in XRD pattern. The value of crystallite size were given in Table 2.

The dislocation density (δ), defined as the length of dislocation lines per unit volume, is estimated using the following equation (Khan et al. 2010).

$$\delta = \frac{1}{D^2} \tag{3}$$

We found the dislocation density (δ) showed in Table 2.

The value of lattice Strain (ε) of the samples is estimated using the equation (Saleem et al. 2012). $\beta \cos(\theta)$

$$\varepsilon = \frac{\rho \cos(\sigma)}{4} \tag{4}$$

The calculated value of lattice Strain (ɛ) were given in Table 2.

Fable 2.	(2θ) , d-spacing,	FWHM, C	Crystallite si	ze, strain an	d dislocation	for ZnO-CuPc nanoc	composite s	amples	
		(2θ)(°)	d(A°)	FWHM	FWHM	The crystallite size	Strain	Dislocation	
	Sample			(°)	(rad)	(nm)	(* 10-3)	(*10 ³)(nm)- ²	
	Pure ZnO _{0.01}	31.69	2.82	0.44	0.0076	19.45	1.86	2.64	
2	$2nO_{0.01}CuPc_{0.001}$	7.42	12.03	0.36	0.0062	23.6	1.54	1.79	
Z	$2nO_{0.01}CuPc_{0.002}$	9.26	9.62	0.39	0.0068	21.49	1.69	2.16	
Z	ZnO _{0.01} CuPc _{0.003}	7.13	1.24	0.31	0.0054	26.76	1.34	1.39	

Samples				FWHM	Intensity
-	(hkl)	(20) (°)	$d(A^{\circ})$	(°)	(%)
	100	31.69	2.82	0.44	100
Pure ZnO _{0.01}	002	34.56	2.59	0.41	21.04
	004	72.50	1.3	0.35	9.81
	100	7.42	12.03	0.36	36.93
ZnO _{0.01} CuPc _{0.001}	211	21.24	4.1	0.35	92.03
	100	31.69	2.82	0.31	45.18
	100	7.09	12.62	0.38	100
ZnO _{0.01} CuPc _{0.002}	102	9.26	9.62	0.39	76.99
	100	31.74	2.82	0.41	34.4
	100	7.13	1.24	0.31	100
$ZnO_{0.01}CuPc_{0.003}$	102	9.26	9.62	0.33	78.2
	002	31.69	2.82	0.34	50.8

Table 3. (20), d-spacing, FWHM and percentage intensity for ZnO-CuPc nanocomposite samples

3.2. FTIR Analysis



Figure 3. FTIR spectra for ZnO nanoparticles doped CuPc

The FTIR spectra for ZnO-CuPc nanocomposite has been recorded to study the various functional groups of nanocomposites displayed in Fig. 3. Infrared studies were carried out to ascertain the purity and nature of the metal nanoparticles. Metal oxides generally give absorption bands in the fingerprint region i.e. below 1000 cm⁻¹ arising from inter-atomic vibrations. The peak observed at 1119.15 cm⁻¹ may be due to O-H stretching and deformation, respectively assigned to the water adsorption on the metal surface. The characteristic wurtzite lattice vibrations (Zn-O) are corresponding to the broadband in range 400-600 cm⁻¹(Markova-Deneva 2010). The FTIR spectrum for CuPc, has characteristic peaks at 3040 cm⁻¹ and 2930 cm⁻¹ for aromatic C–H stretching, 1609 cm⁻¹ for C=C macro cycle ring deformation, 1504 cm⁻¹ for C=N stretching, 1331 cm⁻¹ for C–C stretching in is indole, 1090 cm⁻¹ for C–H in plane deformation and 728 cm⁻¹ for C–H out of plane deformation. The other peaks at 1290 cm⁻¹, 1161 cm⁻¹ and 1119 cm⁻¹ correspond to C–N stretching in indole, C-N enplane bending, C-H in plane bending, respectively (Singh *et al.* 2008).

3.3. Morphological Analysis

In addition to automated SEM techniques, SEM morphological analysis fully characterized the materials. Though automated SEM analysis offers measured information about size, amount of phases and particles present and chemistry, the morphological analysis offers information about the physical relationships of the phases present, crystallinity and size.

The surface morphology of ZnO-CuPc nanocomposite was studied using FESEM at various magnifications and shown in Fig 4 (a,b,c,d). The pure ZnO, clearly shows (at 2500x, 5000x, 10000x, 15000x different magnifications) the formation of typical rod and clusters. In Fig. 5-7 (a,b,c,d) for ZnO-CuPc clearly shows (2500x, 5000x, 10000x, 15000x magnification) the formation of typical rod and clusters. The ESX spectrum of the sam§les are given in Table 4, Table 5, Table 6 and Table 7, respectively.





Figure 4. SEM micrograph for pure ZnO_{0.01} (a) 4000x, (b) 5000x, (c) 10000x, (d) 15000x magnification



Figure 5. SEM micrograph for ZnO_{0.01} CuPc_{0.00101} (a) 4000x, (b) 5000x, (c) 10000x, (d) 15000x magnification



 $Figure \ 6. \ SEM \ micrograph \ for \ ZnO_{0.01} \ CuPc_{0.00201} \ (a) \ 4000x, \ (b) \ 5000x, \ (c) \ 10000x, \ (d) \ 15000x \ magnification$



Figure 7. SEM micrograph for $ZnO_{0.01}$ CuPc $_{0.00301}$ (a) 4000x, (b) 5000x, (c) 10000x, (d) 15000x magnification

. EDX analysis for pure ZnO _{0.01} sample.					
Element	Weight%	Atomic%			
O K	21.33	52.56			
Zn L	78.67	47.44			
Totals	100.00				

Table 4

Table 5	FDX	analysis	for	$ZnO_{0.01}$	CuPco ooi	sample
Table J.	LDA	anaiysis	101	Z II O 0.01	Cui C0.001	sample

	- 0101	10001
Element	Weight%	Atomic%
СК	32.87	52.08
N K	8.05	11.89
O K	17.78	22.97
Cu L	1.43	0.46
Zn L	39.87	12.61
Totals	100.00	

Table 6.	EDX	analysis	for	$ZnO_{0.01}$	CuPc0.002	sample
1 uoie 0.	DDA	anarysis	101	21100.01	Cui C0.002	Sumpre

Element	Weight%	Atomic%
СК	59.83	75.30
N K	13.45	14.51
O K	5.55	5.24
Cu L	8.27	1.97
Zn L	12.91	2.99
Totals	100.00	

1 able 7. EDA analysis 101 Zh00.01 Cut 0.003 sample	Table 7.	EDX	analysis	for ZnO _{0.01}	CuPc0.003 sampl	e
---	----------	-----	----------	-------------------------	-----------------	---

Element	Weight%	Atomic%
C K	43.14	64.27
N K	9.15	11.69
O K	12.98	14.52
Cu L	1.45	0.41
Zn L	33.28	9.11
Totals	100.00	

4. CONCLUSION

ZnO was synthesized by using the hydrothermal technique then doped with CuPc to make composites with different compositions. Characterization study was carried out using XRD, SEM and FTIR. The XRD patterns are used for phase identification and they showed the amount of impurities and structure depending on the peaks present in the samples. Diffraction pattern displays the hexagonal phase ZnO and for Cu-Pc have different crystal phases: α -, β - and χ - phases. XRD Scherer's formula is used to find the crystallite size of ZnO and doped with CuPc $(0.9\lambda/(B*\cos\theta))$. SEM micrograph used to determine the microstructure and typically rod and clusters formations were observed. FTIR spectra have been recorded to several functional groups.

Acknowledgements

This work is financially supported by FÜBAP, Project No: FF.16.33.

REFERENCES

Güler, Ö., S. H. Güler, Ö. Başgöz, M. G. Albayrak and I. Yahia (2019). "Synthesis and characterization of ZnOreinforced with graphene nanolayer nanocomposites: electrical conductivity and optical band gap analysis." Materials Research Express, Vol. 6, No. 9, pp. 095602.

Güler, S. H., Ö. Güler, E. Evin and S. Islak (2016). "Electrical and optical properties of ZnO-milled Fe2O3 nanocomposites produced by powder metallurgy route." Optik, Vol. 127, No. 6, pp. 3187-3191.

Heilmeier, G. H. and G. Warfield (1963). "Photoconductivity in Metal-Free Phthalocyanine Single Crystals." The Journal of Chemical Physics, Vol. 38, No. 4, pp. 897-901.

Hussein, M. T., K. A. Aadim and E. K. Hassan (2016). "Structural and surface morphology analysis of copper phthalocyanine thin film prepared by pulsed laser deposition and thermal evaporation techniques." Advances in Materials Physics and Chemistry, Vol. 6, No. 04, pp. 85.

Kahraman, S., S. Çetinkaya, S. Yaşar and İ. Bilican "Polyethylene glycol-assisted growth of (2014).Cu2SnS3 promising absorbers for thin film solar cell applications." Philosophical Magazine, Vol. 94, No. 27, pp. 3149-3161.

Khan, Z. R., M. Zulfequar and M. S. Khan (2010). "Optical and structural properties of thermally evaporated cadmium sulphide thin films on silicon (1 0 0) wafers." Materials Science and Engineering: B, Vol. 174, No. 1-3, pp. 145-149.

Markova-Deneva, I. (2010). "Infrared spectroscopy investigation of metallic nanoparticles based on copper, cobalt, and nickel synthesized through borohydride reduction method." Journal of the University of Chemical Technology and Metallurgy, Vol. 45, No. 4, pp. 351-378.

Saleem, M., L. Fang, H. Ruan, F. Wu, Q. Huang, C. Xu and C. Kong (2012). "Effect of zinc acetate concentration on the structural and optical properties of ZnO thin films deposited by Sol-Gel method." International Journal of Physical Sciences, Vol. 7, No. 23, pp. 2971-2979.

Scherrer, P. (1918). "Bestimmung dergrosse und der inneren struktur yon kolloiteilchen mittels." Gottinger Nachr Math Phys, Vol. 2, No., pp. 98-100.

Singh, S., S. Tripathi and G. Saini (2008). "Optical and infrared spectroscopic studies of chemical sensing by copper phthalocyanine thin films." Materials Chemistry and Physics, Vol. 112, No. 3, pp. 793-797.

Xavier, F. P. (1997). "Application of electroreflectance analysis for organic semiconductor thin films." Bulletin of materials science, Vol. 20, No. 5, pp. 651-665.

Turkish Journal of Engineering



Turkish Journal of Engineering (TUJE) Vol. 5, Issue 3, pp. 120-126, July 2021 ISSN 2587-1366, Turkey DOI 10.31127/tuje.695769 Research Article

MODELING AND SIMULATION OF DYNAMIC MECHANICAL SYSTEMS USING ELECTRIC CIRCUIT ANALOGY

Mehmet Akbaba*

University of Karabük, College of Engineering, Department of Computer Engineering Karabük, Türkiye ORCID ID 0000-0001-5013-091X e-mail: mehmetakbaba@karabuk.edu.tr

> * Corresponding Author Received: 27/02/2020 Accepted: 06/05/2020

ABSTRACT

Modeling and simulation are prerequisite to analysis and design of engineering systems. Modern engineering systems often are multy disciplinary, i.e., may include blocks from different majors of engineering, such as electrical, mechanical, fluid, etc. Availability of a unified approach for system modeling will make it easy for engineers or researcher from a certain discipline to model the systems from other disciplines. For example, with availability of a unified modeling methodology an electrical engineer will be able to model a system composed of electrical, mechanical and fluid systems. Modeling of complex mechanical systems is not always easy for engineers from other disciplines. On the other hand, it is much easier to establish mathematical model of electric circuits. Furthermore, simulation software is much richer for electric circuits. Therefore, in this paper a methodology is proposed for unifying the modeling of electrical and complex mechanical systems by obtaining electric circuit model of complex mechanic systems. In developing the proposed methodology, analogy between the electrical and mechanical elements have been used as tools. Proposed methodology has been applied to modeling and simulation of a relatively complex mechanical system and benefits accrued from this approach has been discussed. It is further proposed that the approach presented in this paper can be easily extended to modeling of dynamic systems from other engineering disciplines.

Keywords: Unified Modeling, Simulation, Complex Mechanical Systems, Electric Circuit, Analogy

1. INTRODUCTION

Modeling and simulation are prerequisite to the design of a dynamic system, because directly proceeding to the designing and manufacturing a system and then testing for expected performance would be inevitably expensive. Wide-spread availability of high speed and high storage capacity computers made the simulation process even more attractive. Modeling and simulation lie at the intersection between theory and experiment and highly valued in scientific discovery. Simulation provides additional insights that are often impractical or impossible to discover through real-world experimental and theoretical analysis alone. It could be viewed as virtual experimentation that could be implemented in any circumstances. Benefits of the modeling and simulation can be summarized as follows:

- a) A simulation model executed on a computer system can compress the time frame in thousands of folds and can be used to investigate quickly the effects of a changes in a real-life situation that take place over several years.
- b) Simulation could be used to study complex systems, that would be very difficult to investigate, without runing a simulation model on a fast digitalcomputer.
- c) The effects of various changes on a complex systems performance can be easily investigated without producing a physical prototype.
- d) Simulation culd be used to investigate situation that true hands-on experiments would be dangerous in real life
- e) Optimization routines can be incorporated into the simulation models and system can be designed with optimum performance in various aspects.

There are several software packages available for simulation of mechanical systems such as MATLAB/Simulink toolbox SimMechanics (Hrankova and Pastor, 2013; Virgala at. all., 2013), SIMULIA (SIMULIA, 2008), ANSYS (ANSYS, 2008) and COMSOL (COMSOL, 2008). Also, there are many publications on modeling and simulation of mechanical systems such as (Macchelli, 2009, Dulau and Oltean, 2016, Mohammed, 2015). Modeling of dynamic systems from each individual engineering specialization are given in several texts (Ogata, 2002, Ogata, 2004, Woods and Lawrence, 1997, Close at al., 2002, Ljung and Glad, 1994, Rowell and Wormley, 1997).

However, modern engineering systems are often multy disciplinary, containing blocks from different engineering disciplines. As such, modeling of a multy disciplinary dynamic systems by an engineer or researcher from a single discipline will rise some difficulties. Therefore, availability of a unified modeling methodology will be much useful in modeling process. Towards this aim, in this paper a unified modelling methodology is proposed for unifying the modeling of electrical and mechanical systems by obtaining electrical circuit model of complex mechanical systems. In developing the methodology of proposed unified model, analogy between the electrical and mechanical elements, that are given in several text (Ogata, 2004, Woods and Lawrence, 1997, Close at al., 2002), have been used as tools. It should be noted here that a reverse modeling methodology, i.e., modeling an electrical circuit as an equivalent mechanical system is also possible, which may be preferred by mechanical engineers.

The unified modeling methodology proposed in this paper, has been applied to modeling and subsequently simulation of a complex mechanical system. It has been shown that how the proposed approach simplifies the modeling of complex mechanical dynamic systems. The benefits accrued from proposed approach have been discussed. It is also proposed that the approach explained in this investigation can similarly be extended to the dynamic systems from other engineering disciplines,

2. METHODOLOGY

In translational mechanical systems there are three main system elements, which are mass (M), stiffness element (K) and viscous friction element (B). The most common stiffness element is she spring, which will be considered in this paper. Corresponding elements in a rotational mechanical system are moment of inertia, rotational stiffness and rotational viscous friction. Similarly, in electrical systems there are well known three elements main that are inductance (L), capacitance (C) and resistance (R). The governing equations between mechanical and electrical systems show a complete similarity as shown in the Table 1 and Table 2. This gives opportunity for a perfect analogy between mechanical and electrical systems. Based on this characteristic it is possible to develop unified modeling methodology for modeling complex dynamic mechanical systems in the form of electric circuits. Analogy given in Table 1 is known as direct analog or force-voltage analog in which each velocity corresponds to an electrical current and each displacement corresponds to an electrical charge (Ogata, 2004).

Symb.	Mech.	Unit	Symb.	Electrical Analog	Unit
f	Force	Ν	E	Voltage	V
x	Disp.	m	q	Electrical Charge	С
v	Speed	m/s	i	Electric Current	А
М	Mass	kg	L	Inductance	Н

R

1

C

Electrical

Resistance

Capacitor

Ω

F

Table 1: Analogy between the electrical and mechanical elements

(symb.: Symbols, Mech: Mechanical, Disp.: Displacement)

Ns/

m

N/m

Viscous

Friction

Spring

B

K

Analogy between the governing equations of the mechanical and electrical elements given in Table 1 are written in Table 2. It can be seen from Table 2 there is complete similarity between the governing equations of the mechanical and electrical elements. This gives opportunity for developing a unified modeling methodology between the two systems.

Mechanical Elements and	Analogue Electrical
governing equations	elements and analog
	governing equations
$ \begin{array}{c} & & \\ & & $	$ \begin{array}{c} i \\ \rightarrow q \\ \\ E(t) \\ E(t) \\ E$
$M \frac{dv}{dt} = M \frac{d^{2}x}{dt^{2}} = f(t)$ $v = \frac{dx}{dt}$	$L\frac{di}{dt} = L\frac{d^2q}{dt^2} = E(t)$ $i = \frac{dq}{dt}$
f(t)	$ \begin{array}{c} \overset{i}{\longrightarrow} \mathbf{R} \\ \xrightarrow{\bullet} \mathbf{q} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\mathbf{R}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow}} \\ \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow}} \end{aligned}{\bullet}{\overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow}} \overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\overset}{\bullet}{\overset{\bullet}{\longrightarrow} \overset{\bullet}{\bullet} \overset{\bullet}{\overset}{\bullet} \overset{\bullet}{\overset}{\bullet} \overset{\bullet}{\overset}{\bullet} \overset{\bullet}{\overset}{\overset}{\bullet}{\overset}{\overset}{\overset}{\bullet}{\overset}{\overset}{\bullet}{\overset}{\overset}{\overset}{\bullet}{\overset}{\overset}{\overset}{\overset}{\overset}{\overset}{\overset}{\overset}{\overset}{\overset}{\overset}{\overset}{\overset}$
$Bv = B\frac{dx}{dt} = f(t)$	$Ri = R\frac{dq}{dt} = E(t)$
F(t)	$i C$ $\rightarrow q$ $E(t)$
$Kx = f(t) = K \int v dt$	$\frac{q}{C} = E(t) = \frac{1}{C} \int i dt$
$x = \int v dt$	$q = \int i dt$

Table 2. Governing equations of the mechanical and electrical elements given in Table 1.

The analogy between the physical elements and related governing equations given in tables 1 and 2 clearly show that there is a complete similarity between the two systems. Therefore, the two systems always can virtually represent each other.

The key elements in developing a unified modeling methodology is the form of organizing the interconnects between the different blocks of the mechanical systems, in the corresponding equivalent electrical circuits. These key elements can be laid down as follows:

- a) Each mass in a mechanical system corresponds to a circuit loop in the equivalent electrical circuit. Therefor the number of loops in the equivalent electrical circuit is defined by the number of different masses in the mechanical system.
- b) The interconnect elements in each mass block in mechanical systems corresponds to the electrical elements shared between the equivalent electrical circuit loops.

- c) In a mechanical system the series connected elements carrying the same value of force correspond to the parallel connected elements in the equivalent electric circuit.
- d) In a mechanical system velocity of each mass corresponds to the each loop current in the equivalent electrical circuit.
- e) In a mechanical system displacement of a mass corresponds to the total electrical charge accumulated on each associated capacitor in the equivalent electrical circuit.
- f) In a mechanical system the displacement difference between the two masses corresponds to the total charge on the associated capacitor placed on the branch of equivalent electric circuit that is common to the loops associated with each mass.

3. APPLICATION AND DICUSSIONS

An example mechanical system is shown in Fig. 1.



Fig. 1: Example suspended mechanical system

A suspended system is selected in order in which the gravitational forces can be accounted for. The gravitational forces are shown as M₁g, M₂g and M₃g respectively, where g is the usual gravitational acceleration (g=9.8 m/s²). If references for displacements x_1 , x_2 and x_3 are taken as the positions of the masses, before application of the external forces Fa(t) and Fb(t),



Fig. 2: Equivalent Electrical circuit of the mechanical system given in Fig. 1

but after the system being suspended and the sprigs are lengthened, i.e., as the first equilibrium position is attained, then all the gravitational forces can be dropped from the model equations. In this case the model equations of a suspended systems become like the model equations of a translational systems. Therefore, the way of modelling applied to the suspended system in hand will be equally valid for translational systems as well. In this

Applying the principles of the analogy that have been explained earlier in section 2.1, the electrical equivalent circuit of the mechanical system given in Fig. 1 will be as shown in Fig. 2:

The system parameters are selected as: $M_1=18$ kg, $M_2=12$ kg, $M_3=9$ kg, $K_1=220$ N/m, $K_2=350$ N/m, $K_3=200$ N/m, $B_1=20$ Ns/m, $B_2=15$ Ns/m and the two applied forces are selected as:

$$F_a(t) = 60\sin(2t)e^{-0.1t} + 120 N$$
 and
 $F_b(t) = 30\cos(2t)e^{-0.08t} + 20 N$

Applying the principles of the analogy that have been explained earlier in section 2.1, the electrical equivalent circuit of the mechanical system given in Fig. 1 will be as shown in Fig. 2:

Source voltages $\mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{a}}(\mathbf{t})$ and $\mathbf{E}_{\mathbf{b}}(\mathbf{t})$ in Fig. 2 are corresponding to the applied forces $F_a(t)$ and $F_b(t)$ respectively.

At the beginning the system was in equilibrium position and at instant t=0 both forces are applied simultaneously.

The amplitudes of equivalent electrical circuits parameters naturally are $L_1=M_1$, $L_2=M_2$, $L_3=M_3$, $C_1=1/K_1$, $C_2=1/K_2$, $C_3=1/K_3$, $R_1=B_1$, $R_2=B_2$, $E_a(t)=F_a(t)$ and $E_b(t)=F_b(t)$. Equations governing the circuit given in Fig. 2 will be as follows:

case values of the displacement and velocities of the masses can be taken as zero.

$$E_a(t) = (R_1 + R_2)i_1 + L_1\frac{di_1}{dt} + \frac{q_1}{C_1} + \frac{q_2}{C_2} - R_2i_2 \quad (1)$$

$$0 = -R_2 i_1 + R_2 i_2 - \frac{q_2}{C_2} + L_2 \frac{di_2}{dt} + \frac{q_3}{C_3}$$
(2)

$$-E_{b}(t) = -\frac{q_{3}}{C_{3}} + L_{3}\frac{di_{3}}{dt}$$
(3)

$$\frac{dq_1}{dt} = \dot{l}_1 \tag{4}$$

$$\frac{dq_2}{dt} = \dot{i}_1 - \dot{i}_2 \tag{5}$$

$$\frac{dq_3}{dt} = i_2 - i_3 \tag{6}$$

Organizing the above six simultaneous differential equations into State-Space model (Ogata, 2002; Ogata 2004) one obtains:

$$\dot{x}(t) = Ax(t) + Bu(t)$$

$$y(t) = Cx(t) + Du(t)$$
(7)

Where A is the system matrix, B is the input matrix, C is the output matrix, x(t) are the state variables, y(t) are the output variables and u(t) are the input forcing functions. For the system in hand the open form of these matrixes is given in equation (8). The matrices A, B and u(t) are available from equation (8). The outputs are taken as state variables themselves then the matrix D is a 6 by 2 zero matrix and matrix C is a 6 by 6 unity diagonal matrix.

$$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{di_{1}}{dt} \\ \frac{di_{2}}{dt} \\ \frac{di_{3}}{dt} \\ \frac{dq_{1}}{dt} \\ \frac{dq_{2}}{dt} \\ \frac{dq_{3}}{dt} \\ \frac{dq_{4}}{$$

Equation (8) can be solved by any numerical method or can be solved by using MATLAM/Simulink (Danbey and Harman, 2004). In this paper 4th order Runge-Kutta method has been selected as solution tool (Chapra and Canale, 2010) and MATLAB is used for programming.

The simulation results are shown in Fig. 3 for the velocities of the three masses.



Fig. 3. Velocities of the 3 masses M1, M2 and M3

Examination of the Fig. 3 shows that when the system attains new equilibrium position velocities of the 3 masses becomes zero, which is the expected natural results. This shows the success of the proposed unified modeling approach. Therefor expected correct results are obtained without deriving real mechanical equations.

A new equilibrium position established because as the time progressed the decaying sine and cosine terms in force expressions becomes zero and only the constant components remains. Fig. 3 also shows that, although the larger force on the top side has much higher constant term than the amplitude of exponentially decaying component (60 to 120 N), the velocity of the middle mass attains higher value then the velocities of the both top and bottom

masses, because the middle mass is affected by the vibration of both the top and bottom masses which are under the transient force components that are displaced from each other by 90° time phase difference (sine and cosine terms are displaced by 90°).

The simulation results are shown in Fig. 4 for the displacements of the three masses.



Fig. 4. Displacement of the 3 masses M1, M2 and M3

Fig. 4 shows that the displacements exhibit large excursions between positive and negative values. These large excursions in the displacements are the combined results of the effect of the phase difference between the sinusoidal components of the applied forces and the natural vibrations arising from sudden application of the forces. From Fig. 4 also can be observed that mass M1 which is under lager force has much higher positive displacement and higher steady-state displacement, which is a further proof of the correctness of the applied approach.

To verify that the effect of phase difference in the exponentially decaying sinusoidal components of the forces, the displacements are re-determined by removing the above said phase difference, i.e., converting the cosine term to sine term in $F_b(t)$, where forces are expressed as:

$$F_a(t) = 60\sin(2t)e^{-0.1t} + 120 N$$
 and
 $F_b(t) = 30\sin(2t)e^{-0.08t} + 20 N$

The displacements computed under this condition is presented in Fig. 5. It can be observed from this figure that when keeping all force amplitudes same as before but removing only the phase difference between the forces, the large excursions in the displacements are greatly reduced. On the other hand, the settling time is shortened to a large extent. The remaining transient components are almost the result of natural vibration arising from sudden application of the forces.



Fig. 5. Displacements of the three masses under new set of forces (amplitudes are same as before but the phase difference between the forces are removed).

It can be observed From Figs. 4 and 5 that the final steady-state values of the displacements are same in both cases (46.4 cm, 5.7 cm and 9.8 cm respectively), i.e., they are not affected by the decaying components of the forces. Only the constant terms (120 N and 20 N) are effective on the steady-state values of the displacements.

To verify the above arguments further, the exponentially decaying sinusoidal components are removed from force expressions and displacements are recalculated, i.e., when force expressions are:

$$F_a(t) = 120 N$$
 and
 $F_b(t) = 20 N$

Results of this calculations are plotted in Fig. 6



Fig. 6. Displacements of the three masses under when $F_a(t)=120 \text{ N}$ and $F_b(t)=20 \text{ N}$

Comparison of the figs. 5 and 6 show that the results are almost same in both cases. There are only minor differences in the transient portions of the displacements. This clarifies all the above argument regarding the phase difference between the applied forces.

An experienced system engineer could easily identify that the obtained results are well in lie with the expected results.

The proposed unified modeling methodology can easily be extended to some other dynamic engineering systems such as the fluid systems. Analogy between the basic three elements of the electric systems and the basic fluid quantities, fluid resistance, fluid capacitance and fluid inductance or inertance and also analogy between their governing equations are given in (Close, at al., 2002, Woods and Lawrence, 1997).

4. CONCLUSION

In this paper a unified modeling methodology has been proposed for unifying the modeling of dynamic mechanical systems and electrical systems. Electrical circuits has been taken as the base system and modeling dynamic mechanical systems are modelled as electrical circuit. The unified modeling methodology is based on the analogy between the corresponding basic elements in the mechanical and electrical systems. The main elements of the proposed unified modeling methodology have been laid down in details and then it has been applied to modeling and subsequently simulation of a relatively complex dynamic mechanical system. It is shown how a complex dynamic mechanical system can be easily modelled as electrical circuit, without deriving the true mechanical equations, for example going through free body diagrams, which is not always easy for engineers or researches whose are not mechanical engineers. Further the proposed methodology is benefiting from the relatively easy modeling of electrical circuits. Simulation has been performed for different forms of applied forces and expected results were obtained at each case. This gives confidence about the proposed unified modeling methodology.

Similar unified modeling methodology can be easily extended to dynamic systems from other engineering systems such as fluid systems.

It is also recommended that the prosed methodology could be useful to the practicing engineers and educational purposes.

REFERENCES

ANSYIS Inc. (2008). "ANSYS Multiphysics (Online)", Available: http:// www.ansys.com/.

Chapra, S. C. and Canale R. P. (2010), "Numerical Methods for Engineers", McGraw Hill, New York, USA.

Close C. M. Frederic D. K. and Newell J.C. (2002), "Modelling and Simulation od Dynamic Systems", John Wiley & Sons Inc., NewYork, USA

COMSOL Group, (2008). "COMSOL Multiphysics (Online)", Available: http:// www.comol.com/.

Dabney, J. B. and Harman, T. L. (2004), "Mastering Simulink", Pearson Prentice Hall, New Jersey, USA.

Dulau M., Oltean S. E. and Duka A. V. (2016), "Modeling and Simulation of the Operation Mechanical Systems which Affected by Uncertainties", *Procedia Technology*, Vol. 22, pp. 662-669.

Hrankova, D., and Pastor, M. (2013), "Mechanical Systems a SimMechanis Simulations", *American Journal of Mechanical Engineering*, Vol. 1, No. 7, pp. 251-255.

Ljung L. and Glad T. (1994), "Modeling Dynamic Systems", Prentice Hall, Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey, USA.

Macchelli, A., (2003), "Port-Based Modelling of Mechanical Systems with Rigid and Flexible Links", *IEEE Transactions on Robotics*, Vol. 25, No. 5, pp. 1016-1029.

Muhammed T. T. (2015), "Modeling Mechanical and Electrical Uncertain systems using functions of ROBUST control MATLAB ToolBox", *International Journal of dvanced Computer Science and Applications (IJACSA)*, Vol 6, No. 4, pp. 70-84.

Ogata, K. (2004), "System Dynamics", Prentice Hall, Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey, USA.

Ogata, K. (1997), "Modern Control Engineering", Prentice Hall, Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey, USA.

Rowell G. and Wormley D (1997), "System Dynamics", Prentice Hall, Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey, USA.

SIMULA. (2008). "Abaqus Unified (Online)", Available: http:// www.simula.com/.

Virgala, I., Franskowsky, P. and Kenderova, M. (2013), "Friction Effect Analysis of a DC Motor", *American Journal of Mechanical Engineering*, Vol. 1, No. 7, pp. 1-5.

Woods R. L. and Lawrence K. L. (1997), "Modeling and Simulation of Dynamic Systems", Prentice Hall, Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey, USA.

Turkish Journal of Engineering



Turkish Journal of Engineering (TUJE) Vol. 5, Issue 3, pp. 127-132, July 2021 ISSN 2587-1366, Turkey DOI 10.31127/tuje.702369 Research Article

INTEGRATED AHP-FMEA RISK ASSESSMENT METHOD TO STAINLESS TANK PRODUCTION PROCESS

Seçkin ÇELİKER¹, Esra SARAÇ EŞSİZ² and Murat OTURAKÇI *3

¹ Adana Alparslan Türkeş Science and Technology University, Engineering Faculty, Industrial Engineering Department ORCID ID 0000 – 0000 – 0000 – 0000 seckinceliker@hotmail.com

² Adana Alparslan Türkeş Science and Technology University, Engineering Faculty, Computer Engineering Department ORCID ID 0000 – 0002 – 2503 – 0084 esarac@atu.edu.tr

³ Adana Alparslan Türkeş Science and Technology University, Engineering Faculty, Industrial Engineering Department ORCID ID 0000-0001-5946-3964 moturakci@atu.edu.tr

* Corresponding Author					
Received: 11/03/2020	Accepted: 07/05/2020				

ABSTRACT

This study aims to evaluate the hazards of the stainless tank production process in a company by using the Integrated Analytic Hierarchy Process (AHP) and Failure Mode and Effect Analysis (FMEA) methods. First, the hazards in the stainless tank production process were identified. Identified hazards were assessed with the FMEA method to calculate Risk Priority Number (RPN) for each hazard. The same hazards were then weighted by using the AHP method. Finally, AHP and FMEA are integrated to achieve a more objective result by using two subjective methods. According to the integrated method results, risks have been prioritized and an objective ranking has been established for action plans.

Keywords: Analytic Hierarchy Process, Failure Mode and Effect Analysis, Risk Priority Number, Stainless Tank

1. INTRODUCTION

Work accidents can be defined as unexpected events, often causing deaths, injuries, loss to machines and equipment, or stopping production for a certain period, which can often be counterworked if essential measures are taken. Occupational safety is defined as by creating healthy and safe working conditions in the work environment; minimizing work-related accidents and occupational diseases and thus increasing productivity by counterwork material and moral losses (Kurt, 1993; Ceylan, 2000).

Accidents at work in the world and Turkey have become a significant problem. Even though occupational accidents are a common issue of all countries; it can be reduced to a specific extent by taking essential measures. Countries failing to take these measures are more affected by accidents

(http://europa.eu.int/comm/eurostat;http://laborsta.ilo.or g)

The most important conclusion of occupational accidents is the death, injury or disability of the employees. Besides, serious material losses are another important conclusion of occupational accidents. Even though it is a very serious improvement on the floor in occupational health and safety issues in Turkey, this should be done on the subject is also irrefragable that much is true. In recent years, the number of accidents per employee decreases. However, when the accident statistics of the last six years are analyzed, it is seen that there are 75840 occupational accidents per year in our country and 1103 employees lost their lives in these accidents. Besides, the material loss brought to our country by these accidents is estimated to be around 45 billion TL / year (Ceylan and Gül, 2015)

The most important aim of our country's National Occupational Health and Safety policy is to reduce the frequency of occupational accidents. (Ceylan and Başhelvacı, 2011; Korkmaz and Avsallı, 2012). To achieve this goal, other than avoiding hazards, various studies should be performed to identify and evaluate risks in advance and to eliminate or minimize these risks.

The danger is defined as a situation that can cause great harm or extinction. The purpose of hazard identification is to identify the problems and levels that may arise from the workplace environment. Risk is the likelihood of a specific and unwanted event (danger) occurring within a certain period. The control of risks is to evaluate the measures to be taken within a certain hierarchy for each risk. Control and evaluation should be done to determine the priority order of the work to be performed. The goal in the control hierarchy should always be to eliminate danger and minimize the risk. Risk Assessment is the process of estimating the magnitude of risks arising from hazards in any system and deciding whether these risks are acceptable, taking into account the adequacy of existing controls. (Ceylan and Başhelvacı, 2011).

Song et al. (2007) applied the FMEA technique to quantitatively analyze the importance of each activity in terms of structural assembly and safety of steelworks. Dey (2010), aims to develop an integrated framework for managing project risks by analyzing risk at a project, work package, and activity levels and developing reactions in this study. As a result of this study, AHP is an existing approach to achieve concurrency in controversial decisions. Wessiani and Sarwako (2015), applies fuzzy FMEA in his method taking into account the limitation of traditional FMEA in assessing the risk score by expert judgment, and these reform risks are classified according to RPFNs. Li and Zeng (2016) aim at the supplier selection method by applying failure modes and effect analysis (FMEA) to evaluate the risks in the decree process. In the literature, FMEA and AHP methods are encountered in different sectors and applications.

As seen in the literature, there are many studies where FMEA and AHP methods are applied. In this study, two subjective methods are integrated to make a more objective evaluation of the scores obtained by applying FMEA and AHP methods.

In this study, 17 risks were identified by observing the stainless tank production process in the factory. After identifying potential risks, the risk-threat table was first established. Risk Priority Scores (RPN) of risks were calculated using the FMEA method. Risks were also evaluated by the Analytical Hierarchical Process (AHP) method to calculate weights (w_i) of hazards. Finally, the two methods were combined and the importance of the risks identified. In this way, it is aimed to reach a more objective result from two different subjective evaluations.

2. MATERIALS AND METHODS

2.1. Materials

This study was conducted in a company operating in the field of manufacturing and engineering that produces stainless tanks in Turkey.

Stainless tanks are mainly used in the food industry, industrial plants, hotels, and hotels to obtain potable water. Some design conditions must be determined before the stainless tank is manufactured. Depending on the criteria such as chemical properties, pressure, and temperature of the fluid to be stored in, they can be manufactured with or without walled stainless steel quality.

The stainless tank production process starts with CNC cutting. Rectangular metal sheets are cut by CNC machine to required measures. Then metal sheets are twisted by wreath machine to the desired shape. After CNC cutting, small protrusions are formed on the surface. These protrusions are eliminated during the grinding phase. Then, start to weld opening. One of the methods of steel joining is the application made to make the welding process more effective. After these processes are performed, tapping is performed to connect the two metals without requiring filling material. In the welding process, the end parts of the stainless tank after twisting are joined here and the main profile is formed. Finally, the stainless tank is washed together with special chemicals and it is made resistant to rust in the passivation process.

2.2. Methods

2.2.1. Analytical hierarchy process (AHP)

AHP method originally developed by Thomas Saaty as a Multi-Criteria Decision Making (MCDM) method (Saaty, 1980). AHP can be described as a decision making and making method used in case the decision hierarchy can be described and gives percentage dispersion of decision points in terms of the factors affecting the decision. The steps to be taken to solve a decision-making problem related to AHP are as follows; First of all decision-making problem is identified. Then the inter-factor comparison matrix is formed by using Table 1. After that percentage of factors are determined. Finally, consistency in factor benchmarks is measured (Sivrikaya and Ünal, 2018).

Table 1. AHP Comparison Table (Saaty, 1980)

Rating	Description
1	"Equal importance"
3	"Moderate importance of one over
	another"
5	"Strong importance of one over another"
7	"Very strong importance of one over
	another"
9	"Extreme importance of one over
	another"
2, 4, 6, 8	"Intermediate values"

2.2.2. Failure mode and effects analysis (FMEA)

FMEA is a conventional reliability and safety analysis technique that has indulged wide implementation of distinct products over several decades (Goddard, 2000).

In general, possible errors are identified in the FMEA technique; the causes of each feasible error are identified, their effect on the customer is assessed, the controls that are applied are reviewed, regulative actions are committed and their application is monitored. Three parameters help determine error priorities. These are the effect of severity (S), error probability (P) and detectability (D).

In its most general form, the method can be summed up in five main steps. First of all the method is started with early studies. Then, suitable error types, causes, effects, and current controls are used to identify the error. Risk Priority Numbers are calculated by determining the effect of severity (S), probability (P), detectability (D). Risk Priority Numbers are calculated by multiplying the effect of severity (S), error probability (P) and detectability (D). After that, sorting according to the risk priority number and determining the errors and actions to be taken. Finally, the determined activities are implemented and the new risk priority number is calculated (Yılmaz, 2000; Aran, 2006). Severity, probability and detectability values are presented in Tables 2,3 and 4 respectively. After calculation of the RPN score, hazards are evaluated according to Table 5.

Table 2. S	Severity	Table	(Xu et.	al,	2002)
------------	----------	-------	---------	-----	-------

Effect	Effect of Severity (S)	Degree
Warning	The potential error that can cause catastrophe	10
Warning	Failure of warning and failure, which can lead to high damage and mass deaths	9
Too High	Failure of warning and failure, which can	8

	lead to high damage and	
	mass deaths	
	It causes complete damage	
	to the equipment and	
High	has the effect of death,	7
	poisoning, 3rd-degree burn,	
	acute fatal disease, etc.	
	Affecting the performance	
	of the system,	
Middle	causing loss of limb and	6
	organ, severe injury,	
	cancer, etc.	
	Fracture, permanent minor	
Low	disability,	5
LOW	2nd-degree burns, brain	5
	concussion, etc.	
	Error causing short-term	
	discomfort with minor	
Very Low	injuries such as being	4
	injured, minor cuts and	
	abrasions, crushes, etc.	
Small	Error slowing down system	3
Sinun	operation	5
Verv Small	Error slowing down system	2
	operation	-
No	No effect	1

Table 3. Probability Table (Xu et. al, 2002)

Effect	Error Prob	ability	Degree
Too high:	More than 1/2	50,00%	10
Unavoidable	1/3	33,33%	
Error			9
High: Error	1/8	12,50%	8
Repeatedly	1/20	5 00%	-
	1/20	5,0070	7
Moderate:	1/80	1,25%	6
Occasional	1/200	0,50%	5
Error	1/2.000	0,05%	4
Low: Relatively	1/15.000	0,006%	3
Few Errors	1/15.0000	0,0006%	2
Few: Unlikely	Lower than	-	1
Error	1/1.500.000		

Table 4. Detectability Table (Xu et. al, 2002)

Effect	Effect of	Degree
Litter	Detectability (D)	Digite
Unnoticable	It is not possible to	10
Ullioticeable	the potential error	10
	It is too far to	
Very little	discover the cause of	9
	the potential error	
	It is far to discover	
Little	the cause of the	8
	potential error	
	Low potential to	
Very low	detect the cause of	7
	the potential error	

Low	The cause of the potential error is too low to discover	6
Middle	The cause of the potential error can be discovered the medium	5
High Average	The high average for discovering the cause of the potential error	4
High	High potential to detect the cause of the potential error	3
Very High	The cause of the potential error is too high to be discovered	2
Almost Certain	It is almost certain that the cause of the potential error can be discovered.	1

Table 5. RPN Scale (Xu et. al, 2002)

RPN	FMEA-Measure
RPN < 40	No need to take precautions
$40 \le RPN \le 100$	It is useful to take precautions
100 < RPN	Precautions must be taken

3. RESULTS AND DISCUSSIONS

In this part, the hazards that can be encountered in the stainless tank production process of a company serving in the complete design, manufacturing, engineering and assembly works of the industrial plants have been determined with observations and expert opinions. Obtained hazard definitions are presented in Table 6.

Table 6	. Hazard	Definitions
---------	----------	-------------

Hazard	Definition of Hazard	
No#		
	Oxygen cylinders used in the factory are	
1	close to the welding machine and the	
1	spiral machine, which can cause an	
	explosion.	
	The tubes may explode as the worker uses	
2	electronic cigarettes near oxygen	
	cylinders.	
	Due to the overhead crane on the CNC	
3	machine, the operator can be hit and	
	injured by careless handling.	
	Workers may have an occupational	
4	accident as they are tired and careless due	
	to their busy working tempo.	
	Since the remaining parts are put very	
	close to the machine after cutting on the	
5	CNC machine, the operator and workers	
	can get caught in the parts and fall and be	
	injured.	
	As a result of insufficient lighting in the	
6	production area of the factory, workers	
	may have accidents and injuries.	

7	Due to the length of the cables of some hand tools used, the parts may fall and workers may be injured.
	Due to broken parts of the wooden support
8	where some heavy metal parts are placed,
	the parts may fall and cause injury.
	As the rope used for lifting and
0	transporting heavy parts is worn out, the
9	part may fall during lifting or
	transportation and cause injury or death.
10	The operator may be injured if the filter
10	on the CNC machine falls.
	Since the dust pot does not have a lid,
11	overfilled metal parts can be injured by
	the employees passing by the ladle.
	Workers may fall and get injured due to
12	loosening in some parts of the metal step
	around the twisting machine
	As workers enter the tank during welding,
13	it may result in death if the employee or
	the tank falls.
14	Workers may be injured as a result of
	broken hand tools.
	Employees may fall and get injured due to
15	the inadequate metal step which is used
	for welding or entering the tank.
16	Failure to perform regular morning checks
	of the trucks may damage the vehicle.
17	Accidents can occur due to the narrow
-	internal road.

The hazards identified during the stainless tank production process were evaluated by the FMEA method. During the assessment, the effect of severity, the probability of error and the probability of detectability were taken into consideration. Table 2, Table 3 and Table 4 were used for each component. After determining the required values, RPN was calculated for each hazard. As a result of the RPN calculation, the hazards are ranked according to their RPN score and presented in Table 7.

Table 7. FMEA Application Results

Hazard No #	RPN Scor e	Priority	Interpretation
16	240	1	Precautions must be taken
13	216	2	Precautions must be taken
4	162	3	Precautions must be taken
14	140	4	Precautions must be
3	70	5	It is useful to take
15	60	6	It is useful to take
5	48	7	It is useful to take
10	45	8	It is useful to take precautions
6	40	9	It is useful to take
17	30	10	No need to take precautions

1	27	11	No need to take precautions
9	25	12	No need to take
12	24	13	No need to take
8	21	14	No need to take
11	20	15	No need to take
2	18	16	No need to take
7	9	17	No need to take precautions

According to this ranking, Hazard #16 has the highest RPN score and Hazard #13, Hazard #4, Hazard #14 is calculated as the top risks as well while Hazard #9 has the lowest RPN score.

As the second application step of the study hazards is identified in the stainless tank production process has been prioritized by using the AHP method. A CR (Consistency Ratio) of less than 0.10 indicates that the comparisons made by the decision-maker are consistent. As a result of the dual evaluation of the hazards which are in the stainless tank production process, the weight score for each hazard is calculated and presented in Table 8. Table 1 was used for this evaluation.

Table 8. AHP Application Results

Hazard No #	Wi	Priority Order
13	0,1931	1
12	0,1599	2
8	0,1298	3
9	0,1140	4
15	0,0821	5
1	0,0634	6
16	0,0499	7
2	0,0470	8
5	0,0314	9
3	0,0283	10
6	0,0235	11
11	0,0188	12
17	0,0168	13
7	0,0128	14
4	0,0116	15
14	0,0093	16
10	0,0074	17

According to these weights, the hazards are prioritized within themselves. This order of priority is given in Table 8. According to these results, while Hazard #13 has the highest weight, Hazard #10 has the lowest weight. When both results are compared, differences in prioritization occur. For instance, the top 5 hazards which have the highest RPN value are different from the top 5 hazards which have the highest weight.

The values given when determining the RPN and Weight score of hazards may vary according to the opinion of the expert performing the risk analysis. If the expert is indecisive, or if he or she evaluates even one parameter differently when analyzing by another expert, the risk score or weight may be calculated differently. As a result of different calculations, a hazard that needs to be taken into the action plans can be ignored.

Even though measurements in FMEA and comparisons in AHP are performed by the same expert team in the company; results vary from each other which illustrates the subjectivity of the methods which confuses about which hazard should be taken into consideration. Hence, a combination of these two methods has been performed to decrease the subjectivity level, to prevent the negative effects of these subjective evaluations and a more objective result has been tried to be obtained. As a result of AHP-FMEA integration, RPN * *Wi* scores of risks in the stainless tank production process were determined and presented in Table 9.

Table 9. Integrated AHP-FMEA Application Results

Hazard No #	Wi*RPN	Priority Order
13	41,7260	1
16	11,9821	2
15	4,9297	3
12	3,8383	4
9	2,8518	5
8	2,7260	6
3	1,9817	7
4	1,8919	8
1	1,7122	9
5	1,5092	10
14	1,3135	11
6	0,9424	12
2	0,8472	13
7	0,1160	14
17	0,5062	15
11	0,3765	16
10	0,3358	17

When hazards are prioritized according to integrated AHP - FMEA risk assessment results, Pareto analysis has been applied to the results to identify which hazards should be taken into action plans primarily. The Pareto chart for integrated results is presented in Figure 1. According to the results, the company needs to focus on Hazard #13, Hazard #16, Hazard #15, Hazard #12, Hazard #9 because of the 80-20 rule of Pareto.



Figure 1. Pareto Chart for Integrated Results

4. CONCLUSION

The use of risk assessment methods performed in companies within the framework of Occupational Health and Safety differs in sectors. The differences between the results of the methods; In risk analyzes performed at decision points where experts are inadequate or hesitant when applying the methods, the results of incorrect prioritization of hazards and incorrect classification of related hazards appear.

In this study, an integrated risk assessment method for the stainless tank production process is performed. FMEA, AHP, and AHP-FMEA integration methods are applied and results are compared for the selected process. In this study, first, 17 hazards were identified in the stainless tank production process. To assess these risks, the FMEA method was applied. The severity, probability, and detectability of the risk were considered when FMEA was implemented. The Risk Priority Number (RPN) was calculated for each risk after FMEA was administered. Then the risks were weighted by applying AHP. The AHP-FMEA integration method was applied to avoid differences in the aforementioned results and to obtain more objective results.

REFERENCES

Aran, G. (2006). Kalite iyileştirme sürecinde hata türü etkileri analizi (FMEA) ve bir uygulama (Yüksek Lisans Tezi, Gaziosmanpaşa Üniversitesi, Sosyal Bilimler Enstitüsü).

Ceylan, H. (2000). İmalat Sistemlerindeki İş Kazalarının Tahmini İçin Ağırlıklandırılmış Ortalamalardan Sapma Tekniği. Gazi Üniversitesi, Fen Bilimleri Enstitüsü, Yayınlanmamış Doktora Tezi, Ankara.

Ceylan, H., & Başhelvacı, V. S. (2011). Risk değerlendirme tablosu yöntemi ile risk analizi: bir uygulama. Uluslararası Mühendislik Araştırma Ve Geliştirme Dergisi, 3(2), 25-33.

Ceylan, H., & Gül, T. S. (2015). Facts on safety at work for Turkey. Journal of Multidisciplinary Engineering Science and Technology, 2(5), 1192-1200.

Dey, P. K. (2010). Managing project risk using combined analytic hierarchy process and risk map. Applied Soft Computing, 10(4), 990-1000.

Eurostat, Statistics European Statistics on Accidents At Work ES, http://europa.eu.int/comm/eurostat [Accessed: 06.03.2020]

Goddard, P. L. (2000). Software FMEA techniques. In Annual Reliability and Maintainability Symposium. 2000 Proceedings. International Symposium on Product Quality and Integrity (Cat. No. 00CH37055) (pp. 118-123). IEEE.

ILO (International Labor Office), http://laborsta.ilo.org. [Accessed: 06.03.2020]

Korkmaz, A., & Avsallı, H. (2012). Çalışma hayatında

yeni bir dönem: 6331 sayılı iş sağlığı ve güvenliği yasası. Süleyman Demirel Üniversitesi Fen-Edebiyat Fakültesi Sosyal Bilimler Dergisi, 2012(26), 153-167.

Kurt, M. (1993). İş Kazalarının Ergonomik Analizi. Gazi Üniversitesi, Fen Bilimleri Enstitüsü, Yayınlanmamış Doktora Tezi, Ankara.

Li, S., & Zeng, W. (2016). Risk analysis for the supplier selection problem using failure modes and effects analysis (FMEA). Journal of Intelligent Manufacturing, 27(6), 1309-1321.

Saaty, T. L. (1980). The analytical hierarchy process, planning, priority. Resource allocation. RWS publications, USA.

Sivrikaya, B. T., & Ünal, E. (2018). AHP Grup Karar Verme Yöntemi ile Bilgi İşlem Çalişanlarının Yetkinlik Temelli Performanslarının Değerlendirmesi. Uluslararası İktisadi ve İdari İncelemeler Dergisi, 501-514.

Song, J. W., Yu, J. H., & Kim, C. D. (2007, September). Construction safety management using FMEA technique: Focusing on the cases of steel frame work. In 23rd Annual ARCOM Conference (pp. 3-5).

Wessiani, N. A., & Sarwoko, S. O. (2015). Risk analysis of poultry feed production using fuzzy FMEA. Procedia Manufacturing, 4, 270-281.

Xu, K., Tang, L. C., Xie, M., Ho, S. L., & Zhu, M. L. (2002). Fuzzy assessment of FMEA for engine systems. Reliability Engineering & System Safety, 75(1), 17-29.

Yılmaz, B.S. (2000). Hata Türü ve Etkileri Analizi, Dokuz Eylül Üniversitesi Sosyal Bilimler Enstitüsü Dergisi, 2(4), 133-150.

Turkish Journal of Engineering



Turkish Journal of Engineering (TUJE) Vol. 5, Issue 3, pp. 133-145, July 2021 ISSN 2587-1366, Turkey DOI 10.31127/tuje.704692 Research Article

PIONEERING INSTITUTIONS IN SECTOR ON REAL ESTATE APPRAISAL

Fatih Taktak *1, Mahir Serhan Tem1z²

¹Usak University, Faculty of Engineering, Department of Surveying Engineering, Turkey ORCID ID 0000-0003-1324-2036 fatih.taktak@usak.edu.tr

² Usak University, Faculty of Engineering, Department of Surveying Engineering, Turkey ORCID ID 0000 – 0002 – 6892 – 9110 mahir.temiz@usak.edu.tr

* Corresponding Author Received: 16/03/2020 Accepted: 07/05/2020

ABSTRACT

The institutions that take the leading role in the evaluation of the real estate should be determined. Real estate valuation takes place in a multi-headed organizational structure and is benefited from institutions in both the public and private sectors. The method of determining the institutions will be examined through the social network analysis methodology of the network of relations between public institutions and the private sector. With the numerical and visual analyzes the following questions will be examined: "Which is the director and responsible institution to undertake the task of collecting the institutional structure under one roof?", Which is the institution that uses the real estate appraisal results most in their works?, Which institutions that make real estate appraisal?, Which of the institutions that make real estate appraisal are most trusted?". The study will be conducted in order to find answers given to the related questions. As a result, relations between institutions engaged in real estate appraisal business are assessed by social network analysis and interoperability issuing "awareness network" will be put forward.

Keywords: Real Estate Appraisal, Network Analysis, Organizational Communication, Interoperability, Awareness

1. INTRODUCTION

In the competitive and variable environment of life in recent years, it has become compulsory for any service providing process to be fast, quality and economical in general. A new approach to service provisioning is possible only if different service providers can cooperate or collaborate effectively. Interoperability infrastructures are required for this (Zutshi, 2012; Charalabidis, 2015; Diallo, 2016). TNCIS (Turkey National Geographic Information System) and services not in the field, in all other areas, such as e-government has emerged in a very significant way (Güney, 2015; Polat, 2015; Ozbek, 2016; Saralioğlu, 2019).

According to significant studies carried out regarding today's public and private sector structures show that requires active collaborations, both functional and physical and within hierarchical boundaries (Vaubel, 2016; Smith, 2017; Wang, 2019;). Such a study is carried out through informal networks between institutions. In this study, collaborations and communication networks are put forward by using social (organizational) network analysis and suggestions are introduced (Tichy, 1979; Borgatti, 2003; Carrington, 2005; Ujwary-Gil, 2019). The awareness network can be established as to whether or not the institutions are aware of each other's data and which exchange data among themselves and which institutions are represented with network analysis that often happens (Thibaut, 2012; Barabási, 2016; Jones, 2017). These two analyzes can be integrated and interpreted.

Throughout the country, public and private sector institutions that make property appraisal were identified, and a network of invisible relationships between them were uncovered and thus; it was attempted to determine the premise institution to undertake the task of gathering under a single roof in the evaluation of real estate with the obtained numerical and visual analysis data (Friedman, 2017; MacGregor, 2018).

In this study, targeted benefits across Turkey by determining the roofing Institution of real estate valuation are summarized below:

Determination and registration of real estate values is necessary for the provision of tax justice and planned development in the country. It is important to know the value of real and legal persons ' private property in terms of recording economic transactions. It is important to determine the value of the real estate in terms of expropriation, housing sector, reduction of company assets and litigation load, to arrange expert reports on real estate values in cases based on Geographical Information Systems, scientific technical data, and to carry out the expropriation operations fairly and smoothly. Urban transformation projects of public, the property rights of real and legal persons to be treated with respect, urban rent and the city of society, social peace, and peace in terms of a public service that is the view of stakeholders that must be performed immediately.

2. REAL ESTATE VALUATION

Planning of cities and economic development of the reconstruction plans are only possible by evaluating the real estate with appropriate methods (Yu, 2016; Kauko, 2018; Ertas, 2019; Nanda, 2019). Moreover, the revaluation of the real estate value increases arising from

public investments can be realised by evaluating these properties before and after the investment (Wang, 2018). Real estate appraisal is also of great importance in terms of selecting new settlement areas, consolidating of fragmented parcels in urban areas and arranging them following the plan, clarity and trust of real estate markets, monitoring price changes in the market, guiding real estate buyers, sellers, owners and entrepreneurs (Lucius, 2001; Krause, 2012). Real estate valuation is one of the essential economic bases of developed societies. In our country, real estate appraisal transactions are not dependent on any standard, and they have adverse effects on economic and social balances. Since the real estate appraisal system still does not exist, many valuation cases have come to our country, economically there are significant tax losses of the state, and there are many differences in the real estate market. Due to the increasing number of discussions in this subject and the increasing need for information related to the subject, it is necessary to provide a more healthy system of valuation of real estates (Whitney, 2009; Smith; 2016; Unel, 2017). The same or similar activities for real estate can be realised by more than one institution. In our country, interinstitutional coordination is of great importance in terms of preventing repetitive work and, if necessary, sharing of acquired experiences. On the other hand, according to the administrators and employees of the institutions operating in the real estate, there is no effective coordination among the institutions in our country (Iversen, 2016; Esen, 2017; Lundsgaarde, 2018).

3. SOCIAL NETWORK ANALYSIS

The earliest findings of SNA are known to be found in the writings of ancient Greek scholars. The primary development regarding this area started in the 1930s with studies in different fields progressing independently of each other (Scott, 1988; Wasserman, 1994; Knoke, 2008). Network analysis which is being examined in the fields of psychology, sociology, mathematics, statistics and informatics, is today a research area which is mentioned with its applications spreading in a comprehensive framework including social scientists, informatics experts, politicians, economists, sociologists and mathematicians (Freeman, 2004; Carrington, 2005; Borgatti, 2009). A study by the American scientist Jacob Moreno (1938), a sociogram or diagrammatic map benefiting dots and lines to illustrate social relations has been adopted as an important starting point for the development of social network analysis. In his study of the foundations of sociometry, Jacob Moreno used methods including graphical representations, which allowed individuals or social groups to identify the relationships within quantifiable quantitative parameters. Moreno focused on the relationships between people rather than people and has made concrete ideas about the social network or social texture that had not been previously apparent (Freeman, 1996;. Borgatti, 2010)

SNA is a method of investigating the structure of social relationships that exist between people.; It is also an analytical framework for examining the relationships between social entities. Through SNA, the social network is defined as the relationship between social actors, mapping and surveying studies. The SNA is based on the assumption that the importance of the relationship between interactive groups. Social entities, defined as actors, are represented as nodes in the plane. Social relations are a result of people's experiences, in other words, how it felt and that also affects the subjective field to which information or resources available with these experiences. The benefit of the SNA is that it allows us to examine the relationships among people and then examine their interconnectedness. SNA is a method that is frequently used to reveal social dynamics in sociological and organizational studies. Identifying information, sharing patterns in education and online learning environments are used to understand social capital accumulation in the network. Since knowledge is an essential factor in the formation of wealth, economic actors want to direct information to themselves. It is one of the reasons that make SNA valuable. The answer to the question of the conditions under which actors who are close to knowledge can use this situation as an advantage can be obtained through the SNA (Freeman, 2017; Borgatti, 2018).

3.1. The Criteria of Social Network Analysis

In the process of examining the network structure with the SNA, it is observed that SNA focuses on the connections between the actors rather than the attributes of the network. During the analysis process, several values obtained as a result of identifying and digitizing the relationships between actors in the network are called criteria. With the criteria used in the SNA is provided by comparing networks, identifying types, analyzing the complex structure of networks, and making the network understandable. By determining criteria such as density, centrality for a network, the position, connections and weaknesses or strengths of an actor in the social network can be revealed. Various criteria can be achieved by performing SNA at different levels when the analysis is done for the whole network. There are different criteria for examining subgroups in the network and in evaluating each actor in the network. Although they have different names, basically each node in a network is called a node, while linking connections/relationships between entities. In visualization applications, the connections between the two nodes are generally expressed as "edge", since they are indicated by a line connecting the nodes (Wasserman, 1994; Carrington 2005; Knoke, 2008).

In order for the SNA to be carried out, a number of data must be available describing Which actors are connected. Mathematical measurement and calculation methods are used to identify and analyze the social network mechanism created after the introduction of network relation data; It is differentiated from the statistical methods used in data analysis of any quantitative research in the field of social sciences. In the social network analysis, specific measurement methods are used to explain the position of the actors in the network and formed as a whole in order to define the network mechanism. In order to explain the relations between the actors and the network mechanism. Jablin and Putnam discussed the methods of measurement in four groups. These are (Jablin, 2004);

- Measurements of social network mechanism used for relationships: It provides the analysis of the structure of the relations between the actors in a network organization and the determination of the extent of the actors within the network. It is also used to describe the qualitatively differentiated aspects of network relationships.
- Measurements of social network mechanism used for actors: The hierarchical structure of a network mechanism is very important in terms of determining the power relations and determining the communication patterns.
- The roles of the actors in the network mechanism: It shows the tasks played by the actors on the network. Measurements of the social network mechanism used to identify network devices: It is used to define the network features as a whole. Information such as the size or density of the network mechanism generated. Also, it is after entering the data by determining network relationships. In organizational research, it provides the determination of the effectiveness of established relations within an area of activity.

Table 1. Social network mechanism measures used for actors (Jablin, 2001; Taktak, 2019)

Measure	Definition					
Degree	The number of direct connections to other actors.					
Indegree	Number of connections of other elements to the actor (receiving connections).					
Outdegre e	The number of connections of the actor to other elements (sending connections).					
Closeness	The closeness of an actor to other actors within the network or the degree of accessibility. It is generally calculated by averaging an actor's path distance (direct or indirect connections) to all others. While a direct relation is valued at 1, indirect relations are valued at a lower number proportionately.					
Between	It is the degree of an actor's preference to be or intermediate between two actors which are closest to each in the network mechanism. It is generally calculated according to the average of all possible bilateral relations in the network.					
Centrality	It is the measure of an actor's degree of being positioned in the center in the network mechanism. The measures of degree, closeness, and between are generally used as the determinants of the centrality. Some centrality measures weight an actor's relation with others by using others' degree of centrality.					

	The	ration	between	current
Density	connec	tions and	possible con	nnections
	in the r	network m	echanism.	

Table 2. The Role of actors in network (Jablin, 2001; Taktak, 2019)

Measure	Definition
Star	An actor had a high centrality in the network.
Liaison	An actor who provides the relationship of two or more groups that cannot otherwise be related to each other.
Bridge	An actor who is a member of two or more groups.
Gatekeeper	An actor was controlling the flow of information with a single connection between one part of the network and the other part.
Isolate	An actor who has no or very little connection with others.

4. IMPLEMENTATION

Based on the institutions shown in Table 3, the cooperation of the institutions which have a network of relations within the scope of real estate appraisal is examined by using SNA method.

Table 3. Organizationsassociated with real estatevaluation In Usak Province (Taktak, 2013)

Name of Institution	Abbreviation		
Usak Municipality	UM		
Special Provincial Administration	SPA		
State Hydraulic Works	SHW		
Housing Development Administration	HDA		
Forest Management Directorate	FMD		
The Directorate of Highways	DH		
Department of Environment and Urbanization	DEU		
Directorate of Title Deed Registry and Cadastre	DTDRC		
Foundations	F		
Turkish Electricity Distribution Company	TEDC		
Governorship	G		
Provincial Directorate of Agriculture	PDA		
Real Estate Agent	REA		
Banks	В		
National Real Estate Department	NRED		
Licensed Bureau of Surveying Engineering	LBSE		
Telecom Directorate	TD		
Directorate of Disaster Affairs	DDA		
Independent Survey and Cadastre Office	ISCO		
Chamber of Commerce	CC		
Chamber of Agriculture	CA		
Directorate of Museums	DM		
University of Usak	UU		
Courts	С		

Natural Gas	NGDC				
Directorate	of	Provincial	Food	DPFAL	
Agriculture and Livestock					

Survey questions were asked to each institution in Table 3 in the form of face-to-face interviews to the relevant experts on Real Estate Appraisal. For five survey questions which are functional in terms of SNA method, the numerical values given by the people who filled out the questionnaire were prepared as a separate Table. The obtained data were statistically and visually evaluated, and the evaluations were performed by Gephi 0.9.1 software which is one of the SNA software and preferred for scientific publications. As the sample of the study, 26 organizations in public and private sectors that used or generated spatial data were selected (Tab. 3).

Likert type scale was used in this study. Based on the recommendations, an odd-numbered scale was used. Additionally, the scale of 0-8 was chosen to show the weight in the network figures clearly. As the study would have a network mechanism sample, the sample was selected to be limited in space. The position-based approach was used to define the limits of samples (Burt, 1983). In the position-based approach, the presence of a membership relation for the network in which actors are in can be proved. The reason why limited space is used in the study is that the number of researched and compared relations increase exponentially with the number of volunteers. Therefore studies in which sociometric data is collected and use a matrix approach usually have 40 or fewer samples (Seevers, 2015). For that reason, it can be concluded that the sample used in this study is adequate for sociometric research. All of the volunteers in the sample were engineers or people with a technical job.

Table 4. Social network analysis survey questions

No	Relations which show the network potential for data sharing	disagree 🔶 agree
1	Which are the most known institutions engaged in the business of real estate valuation ?	0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
2	What is the institution that uses the real estate valuation data in its work ?	0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
3	Which institutions are cooperated most to obtain the data related to real estate valuation ?	0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
4	Which of the institutions that make real estate appraisal are trusted the most ?	0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
5	Which is the guiding and responsible body to undertake the task of gathering institutional structuring under a single roof?	0 1

4.1. Showing Relations of Cooperation, Trust and Data Sharing Within Social Network

Without proper coordination and cooperation between institutions, it is not possible to reach institutional and social goals. Stability and development are realised through inter-agency cooperation and compliance. When corporate relations are carried out, healthily, stability and social development become easier. The institutions need to obtain public trust towards the decisions and actions they take and to get approval and support from their target groups. It is essential to establish public trust and pay due attention to institutions operating in the public sector. Because public institutions are state governing bodies, they have the responsibility of both the administrative power and the public benefit that this administrative power brings. Effective data sharing of organizations is an interoperability system that provides instant access to and use of services. The data needed by the institutions to carry out their activities; It is a comprehensive application that tries to create a fast, economical and efficient way to reach it. Data-based technological applications are increasing day by day and the number of users increases, as well.

Today, for data sharing between institutions, it is necessary to determine the functional, physical and hierarchical boundaries of institutions and to ensure practical cooperation between them. Social networks are the systems that will reveal the invisible cooperation between institutions. SNA, which can be expressed as the digitization and scientific nation of the relations between the actors, is used to transform the existing networks of relations between organizations or organizations into numerical data. According to the digitized data, the shape and characteristics of the network obtained will reveal the efficiency of the institutional or inter-institutional communication network. It also guides taking necessary measures or providing support on the issues analysed.In this study, in order to be able to have an idea about the functioning of the institutions. Besides, the way in which they are perceived by those concerned, an application has been made at the local dimension. In the central district of Uşak province, the existing relationship network between public institutions, local administrations, private sector and real estate appraisal and business sectors that produce data on real estate valuation is presented. The resulting existing networks are aimed to obtain information about the status of the real estate appraisal at the national scale. In the thesis, the relationship between the institutions was examined from a social point of view. It is not from a technical point of view. With this examination, a study has been carried out which can reveal the interoperability of the institutions which are not

aware of them and which do not depend on a particular rule. In the research, social network analysis is examined, and the organizational structure between institutions is put forward. In this context, the survey questions 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 given in Table 4, which would reveal the cooperation within the network, were directed to the concerned.

Survey Question 1: Each organization that uses or produce data on real estate valuation was asked the question "Which are the most known institutions engaged in the business of real estate valuation?". Network and centrality graphs were created using the data obtained from the answers to this question. Actors and data access network among actors is shown in Fig. 1.



Fig. 1. Network map of actors and links between actors according to answers to the first question

The numerical value of the frequency of public institutions meeting with each other was calculated as 415. The maximum number of bonds that can occur in the network is 650 (n (n-1) = 26.25 = 650). Based on this number of bonds, the overall density of the network was calculated as 415/650 = 0.638. For a network of 26 public institutions, this value is seen to have a density above average. 63.8% of the maximum number of ties that can occur between the actors are in the network. It can be said that public institutions' awareness of real estate valuation among each other is above the middle level.

The calculated "in degree, out degree, in closeness, out closeness, in eigenvalues, out eigenvalues and between values" and the institutions with the highest and lowest values are shown in Table 4, according to the answers of the public institutions, namely the actors, to the first question of the survey;

No	Institutions	OutDeg	Indeg	OutClose	InClose	OutEigen	InEigen	Between
1	UM	2.28	5.88	0.806	1	0.195	0.411	0.03
2	SPA	4.36	4.56	1	1	0.338	0.313	0.068
3	SHW	2.84	3.04	0.806	1	0.239	0.217	0.036
4	HDA	1.88	0.76	0.694	0.658	0.188	0.061	0.003
5	FMD	1.16	1.76	0.641	0.735	0.111	0.119	0.002
6	DH	2.6	2.16	0.694	0.926	0.247	0.169	0.01
7	DEU	2.56	1.76	0.758	0.658	0.232	0.156	0.007
8	DTDRC	3.12	6.36	0.962	1	0.248	0.441	0.059
9	F	1.2	0.48	0.641	0.568	0.115	0.039	0
10	TEDC	2.16	1.92	0.694	0.781	0.18	0.147	0.006
11	G	3.56	3.84	1	1	0.291	0.261	0.068
12	PDA	1.48	0.76	0.714	0.595	0.132	0.079	0.001
13	REA	1.56	3.8	0.658	1	0.14	0.272	0.006
14	В	1.6	2.32	0.641	0.962	0.149	0.187	0.01
15	NRED	1.16	2.48	0.61	0.862	0.119	0.218	0
16	LBSE	1.36	1.2	0.694	0.595	0.128	0.143	0.003
17	TD	1.8	1.48	0.714	0.625	0.16	0.137	0.003
18	DDA	1.84	0.64	0.806	0.581	0.171	0.071	0.003
19	С	2.48	2.04	0.962	0.658	0.204	0.183	0.019
20	ISCO	2.12	2.16	0.694	0.694	0.186	0.197	0.005
21	CC	0.92	1.08	0.581	0.658	0.093	0.07	0
22	CA	1.8	0.36	0.694	0.568	0.151	0.034	0
23	DM	2.12	0.64	0.781	0.595	0.188	0.065	0.004
24	UU	3.76	0.96	0.862	0.962	0.32	0.069	0.041
25	DPFAL	1.52	0.88	0.714	0.581	0.134	0.11	0.001
26	NGDC	2.04	1.96	0.694	0.758	0.167	0.151	0.004

Table 4. "Which one is known to most real estate appraisal organization?" In-out degree, in-out closeness, in-out eigenvalues and between proximity values results for this question are:

Survey Question 2: Each organization that uses or produce data on real estate valuation was asked the question "Which institution uses the real estate valuation data in its work ?" and network and centrality graphs were created using the data obtained from the answers to this question. Actors and data access network among actors is shown in Fig. 2.



Fig. 2. Network map of actors and links between actors according to answers to the second question

No	Institutions	OutDeg	Indeg	OutClose	InClose	OutEigen	InEigen	Between
1	UM	3.92	5.24	1	1	0.225	0.278	0.03
2	SPA	4.64	3.84	1	0.926	0.255	0.216	0.019
3	SHW	3.88	3.32	0.962	0.893	0.222	0.193	0.018
4	HDA	3.48	4.48	0.833	1	0.207	0.245	0.016
5	FMD	3.96	3.12	0.926	0.833	0.225	0.183	0.007
6	DH	4.52	3.04	1	0.806	0.248	0.177	0.008
7	DEU	2.56	3.12	0.735	0.833	0.153	0.175	0.003
8	DTDRC	4.48	5.4	1	0.962	0.245	0.289	0.023
9	F	3.04	1.44	0.962	0.676	0.175	0.079	0.002
10	TEDC	3.56	3.24	0.806	0.833	0.211	0.198	0.005
11	G	4.64	3.44	0.962	0.758	0.257	0.181	0.005
12	PDA	4.28	1.88	1	0.641	0.241	0.106	0.001
13	REA	1.88	6	0.658	1	0.109	0.323	0.002
14	В	2.4	5.72	0.735	1	0.142	0.306	0.007
15	NRED	3.88	4.12	0.893	1	0.226	0.215	0.018
16	LBSE	4	2.28	1	0.781	0.23	0.126	0.006
17	TD	2.4	2.4	0.714	0.758	0.139	0.136	0.001
18	DDA	3.36	2.56	0.893	0.781	0.198	0.146	0.004
19	С	1.44	3.68	0.61	1	0.072	0.198	0.003
20	ISCO	4.56	3.84	1	0.926	0.255	0.212	0.022
21	CC	2.6	4.4	0.781	1	0.152	0.244	0.01
22	CA	1.48	1.08	0.676	0.694	0.076	0.058	0
23	DM	3.24	1.2	0.893	0.658	0.183	0.069	0
24	UU	1.84	0.76	0.625	0.694	0.1	0.042	0.001
25	DPFAL	1.88	3.08	0.641	0.862	0.106	0.17	0.002
26	NGDC	3.84	3.08	0.962	0.781	0.221	0.171	0.005

Table 5. "Which institution uses the real estate valuation data in its work?" In-out degree, in-out closeness, in-out eigenvalues and between proximity values results for this question are:

The numerical value of the frequency of public institutions meeting with each other was calculated as 415. The maximum number of bonds that can occur in the network is 650 (n (n-1) = 26.25 = 650). Based on this number of bonds, the overall density of the network was calculated as 519/650 = 0.798. For a network of 26 public institutions, this value is seen to have a density above average. 79.8% of the maximum number of ties that can occur between the actors are in the network. It can be said that the public institutions use real estate valuation studies among each other, and it is above the middle level.

Survey Question 3: Each organization that uses or produce data on real estate valuation was asked the question "Which institutions have cooperated the most to obtain the data relating to real estate valuation?". Network and centrality graphs were created using the data obtained from the answers to this question. Actors and data access network among actors is shown in Fig. 3.



Fig. 3. Network map of actors and links between actors according to answers to the third question

No	Institutions	OutDeg	Indeg	OutClose	InClose	OutEigen	InEigen	Between
1	UM	2.48	4.52	0.735	1	0.241	0.346	0.031
2	SPA	2.8	4.68	0.758	1	0.254	0.354	0.032
3	SHW	2.84	1.72	0.714	0.735	0.275	0.169	0.009
4	HDA	2.32	0.44	0.658	0.556	0.23	0.055	0.001
5	FMD	2.32	1.4	0.694	0.758	0.23	0.134	0.013
6	DH	2.4	2.28	0.714	0.833	0.241	0.222	0.02
7	DEU	2.48	3.28	0.714	0.862	0.251	0.275	0.021
8	DTDRC	2.88	5.76	0.806	1	0.265	0.422	0.046
9	F	0.68	0.72	0.581	0.625	0.068	0.073	0.004
10	TEDC	1.08	0.92	0.641	0.658	0.107	0.079	0.004
11	G	2.76	4.12	0.781	1	0.258	0.308	0.048
12	PDA	1.4	1.08	0.625	0.641	0.15	0.112	0.002
13	REA	2.36	0.68	0.714	0.556	0.234	0.048	0.002
14	В	2	0.96	0.676	0.595	0.185	0.048	0.01
15	NRED	2.4	3.4	0.833	0.926	0.229	0.295	0.061
16	LBSE	2.04	1.52	0.735	0.625	0.212	0.149	0.008
17	TD	1.64	0.24	0.625	0.556	0.172	0.022	0.001
18	DDA	2.04	1.6	0.758	0.658	0.204	0.171	0.012
19	С	1.84	3.48	0.926	0.962	0.174	0.278	0.09
20	ISCO	2.52	1.76	0.893	0.735	0.249	0.166	0.038
21	CC	1.16	1.16	0.625	0.694	0.115	0.132	0.007
22	CA	0.64	0.36	0.625	0.556	0.063	0.029	0.002
23	DM	1.08	0.6	0.694	0.595	0.109	0.072	0.003
24	UU	0.68	0.76	0.61	0.641	0.072	0.09	0.001
25	DPFAL	0.84	0.32	0.658	0.556	0.084	0.026	0.001
26	NGDC	0.76	0.68	0.595	0.625	0.083	0.053	0.001

Table 6. "Which institutions are cooperated with the most to obtain the data relating to real estate valuation?" in-out degree, in-out closeness, in-out eigenvalues and between proximity values results for this question are:

The numerical value of the frequency of public institutions meeting with each other was calculated as 368. The maximum number of bonds that can occur in the network is 650 (n (n-1) = 26.25 = 650). Based on this number of bonds, the overall density of the network was calculated as 368/650 = 0.566. For a network of 26 public institutions, this value is seen to have a density above average. 56.6% of the maximum number of ties that can occur between the actors are in the network. For public institutions it can be said that the intensity of establishing cooperation with each other in obtaining data on real estate valuation is at a moderate level.

Survey Question 4: Each organization that uses or *produce data on real estate valuation* was asked the question " Which of the institutions that make real estate appraisal is trusted the most ?". Network and centrality graphs were created using the data obtained from the answers to this question. Actors and data access network among actors is shown in Fig. 4.



Fig. 4. Network map of actors and links between actors according to answers to the fourth question

No	Institutions	OutDeg	Indeg	OutClose	InClose	OutEigen	InEigen	Between
1	UM	6.72	6.32	0.962	0.862	0.248	0.241	0.041
2	SPA	7.04	6.88	0.962	0.862	0.252	0.262	0.042
3	SHW	7.2	5.6	1	0.758	0.258	0.222	0.021
4	HDA	3.84	3.16	0.658	0.581	0.157	0.128	0.002
5	FMD	0.32	6.32	0.49	0.833	0.015	0.249	0
6	DH	8	5.12	1	0.714	0.283	0.205	0.017
7	DEU	2.16	5.16	0.658	0.714	0.092	0.209	0.003
8	DTDRC	6.04	7.04	0.926	0.862	0.231	0.273	0.074
9	F	2.04	2.88	0.581	0.568	0.086	0.115	0
10	TEDC	3.92	5.76	0.676	0.806	0.154	0.222	0.011
11	G	7.96	6.48	1	0.806	0.281	0.246	0.031
12	PDA	2.76	3.6	0.658	0.625	0.121	0.155	0.001
13	REA	1.28	3.96	0.568	0.694	0.049	0.166	0.002
14	В	0	4.88	0.25	0.758	0	0.193	0
15	NRED	2.32	5.44	0.595	0.735	0.08	0.219	0.004
16	LBSE	5.24	4.24	0.833	0.658	0.199	0.179	0.005
17	TD	3.52	3.96	0.641	0.658	0.142	0.167	0.002
18	DDA	4.28	3.88	0.735	0.658	0.186	0.163	0.003
19	С	8	4.2	1	0.658	0.283	0.175	0.013
20	ISCO	7.04	4.2	1	0.694	0.259	0.172	0.02
21	CC	6.4	4.2	0.893	0.676	0.223	0.176	0.015
22	CA	3.36	3.04	0.641	0.61	0.128	0.132	0
23	DM	5.56	3.36	0.806	0.625	0.194	0.141	0.004
24	UU	6.72	6.44	0.862	0.806	0.244	0.244	0.02
25	DPFAL	3.92	3.96	0.676	0.658	0.154	0.167	0.001
26	NGDC	8	3.56	1	0.625	0.283	0.153	0.005

Table 7. "Which of the institutions that make real estate appraisal is trusted the most ?" in-out degree, in-out closeness, inout eigenvalues and between proximity values results for this question are:

The numerical value of the frequency of public institutions meeting with each other was calculated as 425. The maximum number of bonds that can occur in the network is 650 (n (n-1) = 26.25 = 650). Based on this number of bonds, the overall density of the network was calculated as 425/650 = 0.654. For a network of 26 public institutions, this value is seen to have a density above average. 65.4% of the maximum number of ties that can occur between the actors are in the network. Public institutions; It can be said that the reliability of public institutions among each other about real estate valuation is above the middle level.

Survey Question 5: Each organization that uses or produce data on real estate valuation was asked the question "Which is the guiding and responsible body to undertake the task of gathering institutional structuring under a single roof?". Network and centrality graphs were created using the data obtained from the answers to this question. Actors and data access network among actors is



Fig. 5. Network map of actors and links between actors according to answers to the fourth question

No	Institutions	OutDeg	Indeg	OutClo	InClos	OutEig	InEige	Betwee
1	UM	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	1	0	0
2	SPA	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
3	SHW	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
4	HDA	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
5	FMD	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
6	DH	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
7	DEU	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
8	DTDRC	0	1	0.5	1	0	-1	0
9	F	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
10	TEDC	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
11	G	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
12	PDA	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
13	REA	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
14	В	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
15	NRED	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
16	LBSE	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
17	TD	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
18	DDA	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
19	С	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
20	ISCO	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
21	CC	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
22	CA	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
23	DM	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
24	UU	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
25	DPFAL	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0
26	NGDC	0.04	0	0.51	0.5	0	0	0

Table 8. "Which is the guiding and responsible body to undertake the task of gathering institutional structuring under a single roof ?" in-out degree, in-out closeness, in-out eigenvalues and between proximity values results for this question are:

It is understood from the calculated in-degree centrality values that institution "DTDRC" is found to be the most directing and responsible institution by other institutions in the survey. On the other hand, all institutions with the lowest in the degree of centrality were determined to be the least needed institutions by other institutions.

4.2. Conclusions on the Roles of Organizations in the Network

Centrality measurements are important in determining the positions and roles of institutions in the network. In Table 2, five actor roles defined for social networks have been identified in the Social Network Analysis Criteria section. In order for the determination of roles, institutions with high values regarding degree, closeness and between centrality measurements are shown.

Star: The central actors in the network were star roles. When the degree, closeness and between chart values are considered, the institutions that are the star of

the network are DTDRC, SPA, UM, REA, B and G. These institutions are also in a critical position for social networking because they have the most direct connections. The active involvement of these institutions in the network appears to play an important role in terms of network mobility.

Liaison: It connects two different groups within the social network structure and identifies discrete actors who are not included in these two groups. When the analysis of social network structures is observed/ examined, it is seen that there are not two independent groups within each other, but also there are no institutions that act as linkages and are separated from the groups.

Bridge: The role of the actor is defined as being a member of several groups and providing the connection with other groups. When the analysis of the social network structures is examined, there are no institutions in the role of bridges since there are no two or more blocks in this social network.

Gatekeeper: It is defined as the actor who mediates or controls the flow of information within the social network structure. It is possible to determine the intermediary institutions with the help of measurements of the centrality. When Table number? Is examined in this context, it can be seen that DTDRC, UM, C, G and SPA are gatekeeper institutions. These institutions have a high potential to control the flow of data between institutions within the network and are intermediaries of shared data. If these institutions leave the network, it may be possible to break the relationship of other institution pairs.

Isolate: It refers to those institutions that have little connection with other institutions within the social network structure. Degrees centrality table results are the analysis values that allow the identification of private institutions within the network. When the degree centrality charts are analyzed, it is seen that TD, DPFAL, CA, HAD and DM institutions have the lowest degree centeredness within the network. It is clear that these actors have low effectiveness in terms of accessing, sharing data and participating in communication within the network. In order to increase the mobility of the network, it is essential to identify the institutions in this isolated role rather than randomly increasing communication and data exchange.

5. CONCLUSION

In this study, awareness of institutions producing or using spatial data is tried to be revealed. Thus, it is aimed to contribute to the ongoing future planning process on Real Estate Appraisal. The relation between spatial data for real estate appraisal and all sectors doing business have been examined from the social side, not from the technical side. It is tried to put forward with the "social networks" the system of working together, which the institutions have created unconsciously and which do not adhere to an absolute rule. It is thought that these results and evaluations can be reflected in the whole country.

General evaluation; The overall inter-institutional assessments in connection with the characteristics of the resulting networks are summarized below:

- A large number of institutions in different fields of activity communicate with each other in the areas they need.
- The information or data requested from the institutions is not at a level that will contribute to the development of the strategy of the institution in an advanced dimension.
- The personnel of the institutions have a moderate level of awareness in terms of operating and achieving quality. However, their request for such data sharing is at the forefront.
- It can be said that there is a demand for access to information and data of some institutions, but the level and quality of this demand is generally insufficient.
- It is seen that some institutions are not in a very useful position in the network relationship and do not have any mobility to take part in the Real Estate Appraisal business.
- It can be said that the institutions are willing and conscious about consulting each other in the decision-making processes, but there is not much mutual contribution yet.
- It is understood from the survey that there are many deficiencies in the institutions regarding

technological infrastructure, which is considered to be one of the essential components of Real Estate Appraisal.

• It is determined that the qualified and trained personnel in the institutions are insufficient in terms of quantity and quality. It is understood from the survey data that there are no in-service support programs in parallel with the developing technology.

As a result, the current study has made many conclusions and evaluations visible about, how real estate appraisal function is; which institutions play an active role in this matter, which institutions produce and use the most data. Therefore, it is possible to shed light on which institutions should be taken into consideration in all kinds of arrangements and initiatives for real estate appraisal.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This study was supported by Usak University, Scientific Research Projects Coordination Unit with project number (2016 / MF012).

REFERENCES

Barabási, A. L. (2016). *Network science*. Cambridge university press.

Borgatti, S. P. and Molina, J. L. (2003). "Ethical and strategic issues in organizational social network analysis." *The Journal of Applied Behavioral Science*, *39*(3), 337-349.

Borgatti, S. P., Mehra, A., Brass, D. J. and Labianca, G. (2009). "Network analysis in the social sciences." *science*, *323*(5916), 892-895.

Borgatti, S. P. and Ofem, B. (2010). "Social network theory and analysis." *Social network theory and educational change*, 17-29.

Borgatti, S. P., Everett, M. G. and Johnson, J. C. (2018). *Analyzing social networks*. Sage.

Burt, R. S. and Minor, M. J. (1983). *Applied network analysis: A methodological introduction*. Sage Publications, Inc.

Carrington, P. J., Scott, J. and Wasserman, S. (Eds.). (2005). *Models and methods in social network analysis* (Vol. 28). Cambridge university press.

Charalabidis, Y., Janssen, M. and Krcmar, H. (2015, January). "Introduction to the Big, Open, and Linked Data (BOLD), Analytics, and Interoperability Infrastructures in Government Minitrack." *In 2015 48th Hawaii International Conference on System Sciences* (pp. 2074-2074). IEEE.

Diallo, S. Y., Gore, R. J., Barraco, A., Padilla, J. J., and Lynch, C. (2016). "Quantitative performance metrics for evaluation and comparison of middleware interoperability products." *The Journal of Defense Modeling and Simulation*, *13*(2), 161-169.

Ertas, M. (2019). "Education For Real Estate Valuation In Turkey". International Journal of Engineering and Geosciences , 4(1), 8-15.

Esen, Ö., Çay, T. and Toklu, N. (2017). "Evaluation of Land Reform Policies in Turkey". *International Journal of Engineering and Geosciences*, 2(2), 61-67.

Freeman, L. (2004). "The development of social network analysis." A Study in the Sociology of Science, 1.

Freeman, L. C. (1996). "Some antecedents of social network analysis." *Connections*, 19(1), 39-42.

Freeman, L. C. (2017). Research methods in social network analysis. Routledge.

Friedman, J. P., Harris, J. C. and Lindeman, J. B. (2017). *Dictionary of real estate terms*. Simon and Schuster.

Iversen, T., Anell, A., Häkkinen, U., Kronborg, C. and Ólafsdóttir, T. (2016). "Coordination of health care in the Nordic countries." *Nordic Journal of Health Economics*, 4(1), pp-41.

Güney, C., Doğru, A. Ö., Başaraner, M., Çelik, R. N., Uluğtekin, N., Özlüdemir, T. and Keskin, M. (2015). "TUCBS Açmazı" ve Açık Bir Ulusal Mekansal Veri Altyapısına Yönelim." *TMMOB Harita ve Kadastro Mühendisleri Odası, 15. Türkiye Harita Bilimsel ve Teknik Kurultayı, 25, 28.*

Jablin, F.M. and Putnam, L.J., 2001, "The New Handbook of Organizational Communication : Advances in Theory", *Research and Methods*, Sage Pub.

Jablin, F. M. and Putnam, L. L. (2004). *The new handbook of organizational communication: Advances in theory, research, and methods.* Sage.

Jones, A. T., Friedkin, N. E. and Singh, A. K. (2017). "Modeling the Co-evolution of Committee Formation and Awareness Networks in Organizations." In *International Conference on Complex Networks and their Applications* (pp. 881-894). Springer, Cham.

Kauko, T. (2018). Pricing and sustainability of urban real estate. Routledge.

Knoke, D. and Yang, S. (2008). Social network analysis (No. 154). Sage.

Krause, A. L. and Bitter, C. (2012). "Spatial econometrics, land values and sustainability: Trends in real estate valuation research." *Cities*, *29*, S19-S25.

Lucius, D. I. (2001). "Real options in real estate development." *Journal of Property Investment & Finance*, 19(1), 73-78.

Lundsgaarde, E., Fejerskov, A. M. and Skovgaard, J. (2018). *Analysing Climate Finance Coordination*. DIIS.

MacGregor, B. D., Schulz, R. and Green, R. K. (Eds.). (2018). *Routledge Companion to Real Estate Investment*. Routledge.

Moreno, J. L. and Jennings, H. H. (1938). "Statistics of social configurations." *Sociometry*, 342-374.

Nanda, A. (2019). Residential Real Estate: Urban & Regional Economic Analysis. Routledge.

Ozbek, E. D., Zlatanova, S., Aydar, S. A. and "3d Yomralioglu, Τ. (2016). Geo-Information Requirements Disaster and for Emergency Management." International Archives of the Photogrammetry, Remote Sensing & Spatial Information Sciences, 41.

Polat, Z. A., Ustuner, M. and Alkan, M. (2015). "On the way to vision of cadastre 2034: Cadastre 2014 performance of Turkey." *FIG working week*.

Saralioğlu, M. Ö., Demir, O., Coruhlu, Y. E. and Saralioğlu, E. (2019). "Data model design for qualified natural-protected area in Turkey." *Survey review*, *51*(365), 154-165.

Scott, J. (1988). "Social network analysis." *Sociology*, 22(1), 109-127.

Seevers, M. T., Johnson, B. R. and Darnold, T. C. (2015). "Social Networks in the Classroom: Personality Factors as Antecedents of Student Social Capital." *American Journal Of Business Education*, 8(3), 193-206.

Smith, A. and Wen, X. (2017). "Investing in institutions for cooperation." *Journal of the Economic Science Association*, 3(1), 75-87.

Smith, C. (2016). U.S. Patent Application No. 14/673,810.

Taktak, F., 2013, "Ukva kapsamında sosyal/örgütsel ağ analizi", PhD Thesis, Yıldız Technical University, Institute of Science.

Taktak, F. and Demir, H. (2019). "Relations that Show the Network Potential for Spatial Data Sharing." *Tehnički vjesnik*, *26*(2), 346-354.

Thibaut, A., Bruno, M. A., Chatelle, C., Gosseries, O., Vanhaudenhuyse, A., Demertzi, A. and Bahri, M. A. (2012). "Metabolic activity in external and internal awareness networks in severely brain-damaged patients." *Journal of Rehabilitation Medicine*, 44(6), 487-94.

Tichy, N. M., Tushman, M. L. and Fombrun, C. (1979). "Social network analysis for organizations." *Academy of management review*, 4(4), 507-519. Ujwary-Gil, A. (2019). "Organizational Network Analysis: Auditing Intangible Resources." *Routledge*.

Unel, F. B., Yalpir, S. and Gulnar, B. (2017). "Preference Changes Depending on Age Groups of Criteria Affecting the Real Estate Value". *International Journal of Engineering and Geosciences*, 2(2), 41-51.

Vaubel, R. (2016). "3 Institutions for European Cooperation." *Breaking Up Is Hard To Do: Britain and Europe's Dysfunctional Relationship: Britain and Europe's Dysfunctional Relationship*, 40.

Yu, S. M. (2016). "Real Estate Education." In Singapore's Real Estate: 50 Years of Transformation (pp. 241-252).

Zutshi, A., Grilo, A. and Jardim-Goncalves, R. (2012). "The business interoperability quotient measurement model." *Computers in Industry*, *63*(5), 389-404.

Wang, C., Dai, S. and Xu, H. (2018). "Estimating the land opportunism of hotel investment in generating real estate appreciation and firms' market value." *Land use policy*, *77*, 752-759.

Wang, S., Chen, X. and Szolnoki, A. (2019). "Exploring optimal institutional incentives for public cooperation." *Communications in Nonlinear Science and Numerical Simulation*, 79, 104914.

Wasserman, S. and Faust, K. (1994). *Social network analysis: Methods and applications* (Vol. 8). Cambridge university press.

Whitney, J., Woodworth, B. N., Sohaney, M. and Hacking, L. J. (2009). U.S. Patent Application No. 12/403,324.

Turkish Journal of Engineering



Turkish Journal of Engineering (TUJE) Vol. 5, Issue 3, pp. 146-152, July 2021 ISSN 2587-1366, Turkey DOI 10.31127/tuje.707156 Research Article

TEMPORAL MONITORING OF LAND USE/LAND COVER CHANGE IN KAHRAMANMARAS CITY CENTER

Kubra Aliyazicioglu¹, Fatmanur Beker¹, Raziye Hale Topaloglu^{2,3}, Burhan Baha Bilgilioglu^{1,3} and Resul Comert*¹

¹Gumushane University, Faculty of Engineering and Natural Science, Department of Geomatics Engineering,

Gumushane, Turkey ORCID ID 0000-0001-9675-2546 aliyazicioglukubra@gmail.com ORCID ID 0000-0001-8287-0322 fatossbkr1@gmail.com ORCID ID 0000-0001-6950-4336 bahabilgilioglu@gumushane.edu.tr ORCID ID 0000-0003-0125-4646 rcomert@gumushane.edu.tr

²Mugla Sitki Kocaman University, Yatagan Vocational School, Department of Architecture and Urban Planning, Mugla, Turkey ORCID ID 0000 – 0001 – 9706 – 8068 haletopaloglu@mu.edu.tr

³Istanbul Technical University, Faculty Civil Engineering, Department of Geomatics Engineering, Istanbul, Turkey ORCID ID 0000 – 0001 – 9706 – 8068 topaloglur@itu.edu.tr ORCID ID 0000-0001-6950-4336 bahabilgilioglu@itu.edu.tr

> * Corresponding Author Received: 21/03/2020 Accepted: 02/05/2020

ABSTRACT

Irregular urbanization causes problems such as decrease in fertile agricultural areas, irregular industrialization and urbanization. To provide a healthier life opportunity for future generations without disturbing nature, it is essential to determine the temporal changes in land use and to make land management plans accordingly. In this study, land use/land cover (LULC) change occurred in Kahramanmaras province within 30 years was investigated by remote sensing and integration of Geographic Information Systems. Landsat satellite images of 1988-1998-2008-2018 were obtained for the production of LULC maps. Each image was classified according to supervised classification approach using the support vector machines (SVMs) algorithms. The confusion matrix was created for each year to examine the accuracy of the LULC maps. The overall accuracy of the thematic maps was obtained as 91.76%, 93.56%, 86.89% and 88.29%, respectively. Also, Kappa values of thematic maps for each year were obtained as 0.88, 0.91, 0.81 and 0.84, respectively. When the results were examined, the development of industry in the city area and the construction of the airport contributed to the development of the social and economic structure of the city. The increase in the number of housing in the related regions has led to an increase in the amount of urban areas and a decrease in agricultural areas.

Keywords: Change detection, Support vector machines, Land use, Land cover, Kahramanmaras,

1. INTRODUCTION

Urbanization covers the processes from the first periods of humanity to the transition to settled life (Tok, 2006). Humans need to fulfill their basic needs to survive on Earth. To supply these requirements, they have carried out land-use activities. Over time, population growth slowed down in rural areas and the population increased rapidly in urban areas (Işık,2006). The increase in urban population is caused by factors such as the attractiveness of the city's opportunities, the search for a job, the desire of parents to prepare a better future for their children, the expectation of benefiting from quality education and health opportunities, the feeling of being safer in the city, migration and industrialization (Başel, 2011).

As a result of uncontrolled developments in urban area, many problems arise such as the use of productive agricultural lands in industrial activities and the establishment of settlements on unsuitable lands (Ercan, 2020). To ensure regular development in cities, unplanned construction on land should be prevented, temporal changes in land use should be determined and necessary land use planning should be made (Denizdurduran, 2012). In order to supply the needs of the rapidly increasing urban population, rapid and reliable geographic information about the cities is needed. In this respect, remote sensing offers sufficient advantages for the production of data required for controlled planning in cities by means of data servers and analysis methods (İderman, 2006).

It is important to identify the existing land use/land cover (LULC) of cities for successful urban planning. Although LULC is obtained through traditional inventories or surveys, satellite remote sensing saves time and costs in determining the geographical distribution of temporal changes in LULC on a regional scale. Satellite image analysis provides an effective way to learn about the temporal trends and spatial distribution of urban areas needed to understand land change, model the current situation and prepare future projections (Yuan et al., 2005). Monitoring of temporal LULC in urban areas is possible by temporal analysis of satellite images (Hegazy, 2015; Leichtle, 2017; Jimoh et al., 2018; Goksel and Doğru 2019; Orhan et al., 2019). Different classification algorithms such as can be used in the supervised classification of images for selected periods (Otukei and Blaschke 2010; Karakuş et al., 2017; Göksel, 2018;). The Support Vector Machines (SVMs), one of these algorithms, uses optimization algorithms to find the optimal boundaries between classes. These boundaries ensure that unstable pixels are assigned to the correct classes (Üstüner et al., 2013; Demirkan, 2017). Since SVM has been shown to have a successful classification algorithm in many studies (Mondal et. al., 2012; Kumar et. al., 2015; Thanh and Kappas, 2018), it has been preferred in this study.

In this study, it is aimed to determine the LULC change occurring in 30 years in Kahramanmaraş by using satellite images. Landsat 5 TM (Thematic Mapper) and Landsat 8 OLI (Operational Land Imager) images were used to achieve this goal (Table 1). SVMs algorithm was used in the production of LULC classes for each year. By comparing the generated LULC maps, the change in the urban area was analyzed.

2. STUDY AREA AND DATA SET

Kahramanmaraş, that was selected as the study area, is located at 37° 34' 31" latitude and 36° 55' 22" longitude locations. Kahramanmaraş is located at the junction of the Mediterranean Region, Eastern Anatolia Region and Southeastern Anatolia Region. Due to its location, it has been influenced by three different climates and has enabled many different types of fruits, vegetables and plants to be grown (Geography of Kahramanmaraş, URL1).

The study area covers 321.84 km² and covers the city center and its surroundings (Fig. 1). The study area includes a wide range of LULC classes such as artificial surfaces, wetlands, cultivated agriculture, uncultivated agriculture, industrial area, forest, bare soil-rocky area.



Fig. 1. Study area, red boundary indicates application area.

According to the number of population, Kahramanmaraş is the eighteenth largest city in Turkey. In the mid-1980s, migration from rural to urban areas started in parallel with the developments in the industry. After this period, there was a rapid increase in settlements in the city (Sandal and Karademir, 2013). In this study, the general city center change of Kahramanmaraş province has been examined since the industrialization period has increased. In order to reveal the general change, the temporal analysis was carried out in 10-year periods. Landsat images, free satellite images provided by the US government, were used to determine the 30-year changes in the study area. The research area was examined in four periods as 1988, 1998, 2008 and 2018. When the images were selected for analysis, Attention was paid to ensure that the images are close-dated and cloudless. LULC maps were generated for each period using multispectral bands common to both Landsat 5 and Landsat 8 images (Table 1).

 Table 1. Spectral bands used in the classification process and image dates

Bands	Wavelength	Spatial resolution				
Blue	0.45-0.52	30				
Green	0.52-0.60	30				
Red	0.63-0.69	30				
Near Infrared	0.76-0.90	30				
Shortwave Infrared -I	1.55-1.75	30				
Shortwave Infrared -II	2.08-2.35	30				
Table 1. Cont.						

(Table 1. Cont.) Images Date and Satellite Names				
15.07.1988	27.07.1998	22.07.2008	18.07.2018	
(Landsat 5)	(Landsat 5)	(Landsat 5)	(Landsat 8)	

3. METHOD

Each object on the Earth has spectral properties. The grouping of objects with the same spectral properties in satellite images is called classification (Oruc et al., 2007). It is classified under two headings as supervised and unsupervised classification. Unsupervised classification is generally the preferred method when there is no prior knowledge of the terrain. In this method, spectral classes of pixels with the same properties are created. (Çölkesen, 2009; Kavzoğlu and Çölkesen, 2010). In supervised classification, signature files are created for the objects to be subjected to the classification process, taking into account the sample regions on the Earth. According to this signature file, each pixel in the image is assigned to the class in which it is most similar (Ekercin, 2007). In this study, SVMs, which is one of the supervised classification methods, is preferred (Vapnik, 1995). SVMs are a learning method in the field of statistical learning theory. SVMs are based on finding the maximum separation boundary in different samples by transferring non-linear sample space to a high dimension where samples can be separated linearly (Demirci, 2007; Eray, 2008).

SVMs are a classification algorithm frequently used in the classification process in the field of remote sensing in recent years (Mondal et. al., 2012; Kumar et. al., 2015; Thanh and Kappas, 2018). The main advantage of this method is that it can easily generalize high-dimensional data with few training data. SVM works with pixels at the boundaries of classes called support vectors, so it is possible to obtain accurate classification with the small training set. DVMs use kernel functions for separate classes in complex datasets to identify hyperplanes with non-linear mapping operations. Generally, linear, polynomial, radial basis function (RBF) and sigmoid kernels functions are used in the classification of remote sensing images. Comparing the classification success of these four functions, it was observed that RBF kennel function given better results than others. In this study, images belonging to different years were classified using the RBF kernel function (Kavzoğlu and Cölkesen, 2009; Yang et al. 2011; Esetlili et al. 2018).

The workflow of determining the temporal change at Kahramanmaraş city center was shown in Fig. 2. First of all, Landsat 5 and Landsat 8 images of the related years were obtained. LULC classes were determined in the study area and training data were collected. According to the training data, classification process was performed with SVM algorithm for each year. In order to test the accuracy of the obtained LULC maps, 256 random points were placed in the study area. The error matrix was generated by these points and the classification accuracy was calculated. In the last stage of the study, the change of land use classes according to artificial surfaces was determined between the selected years.

Accuracy assessment was performed using error matrix (Table 2). In Table 2, the rows represent the classification values while the columns represent the reference values. $n_{i.}$ value is defined by the $\sum_{j=1}^{k} n_{ij}$ equation, while $n_{.j}$ is defined by the $\sum_{i=1}^{k} n_{ij}$ equation.

Using error matrix, User's Accuracy (Eq. 1), Producer's Accuracy (Eq. 2), Overall accuracy (Eq. 3) and Kappa statistics (Eq. 4) were calculated for each LULC maps (Cohen, 1960; Congalton and Green, 1999; Jenness and Wynne, 2005).





Table 2. Theoretical representation of the error matrix(Jenness and Wynne, 2005)



$$Overall Accuracy = \frac{\sum_{i=1}^{k} n_{ii}}{n}$$
(3)

$$Kappa = \frac{n\sum_{i=1}^{k} n_{ii} - \sum_{i=1}^{k} n_i n_{ii}}{n^2 - \sum_{i=1}^{k} n_i n_i}$$
(4)

The explanations of the values given in the equations are as follows (Cohen, 1960;Congalton and Green, 1999; Jenness and Wynne, 2005).

- k: the number of ROWS in the error matrix,
- n_{ii}: i th row and i th column element of the error matrix,
- n_{jj}: j th row and j th column element of the error matrix,
- n_i: Sum of the i th row elements of the error matrix,
- n.i: Sum of the i th column elements of the error matrix

4. RESULT AND DISCUSSION

In this study, LULC change of Kahramanmaraş city center from 1988 to 2018 was observed at 10-year intervals. Satellite images for each year were classified into seven classes that were artificial surfaces (asphalt roads, building) wetlands, cultivated agriculture, uncultivated agriculture, industrial area, forest, bare soil-rocky area (Fig. 3).



Fig. 3. Land use and land cover maps for each year

Accuracy analysis was performed on the LULC maps obtained after classification. During the accuracy analysis, 256 random points were generated. Reference class values and predicted values obtained by classification are assigned to the points. To determine the accuracy of the classification, Producer's Accuracy (P.A.), User's Accuracy (U.A.), kappa coefficient and overall accuracy values were calculated for each year over the error matrix (Table 3). According to accuracy results, the overall accuracy of the thematic maps was obtained 91.76%, 93.56%, 86.89% and 88.29%, respectively. Also, Kappa values for each year were obtained as 0.88, 0.91, 0.81 and 0.84, respectively.

	Table 3. Accuracy an	alysis result	s of the prod	uced LULC ma	ps for each year
--	----------------------	---------------	---------------	--------------	------------------

LU/LC Classes	1988		1998		2008		2018	
	U.A.	P.A.	U.A.	P.A.	U.A.	P.A.	U.A.	P.A.
Wetlands	87.80	100	72.41	95.45	100	100	100	100
Bare Soil-Rocky Area	68.42	76.47	100	66.67	68.42	81.25	56.00	87.50
Uncultivated Agriculture	96.26	89.57	96.30	89.66	87.79	92.23	96.43	81.82
Industrial Area	66.67	100	100	97.87	71.43	71.43	100	100
Artificial Surface	100	100	100	93.75	87.50	84.85	88.10	97.37
Forest Area	100	93.33	100	100	83.33	76.92	85.00	100
Cultivated Agriculture	87.80	100	90.00	100	95.83	79.31	91.30	87.50
Overall Accuracy	91	.76	93.	.56	86	.89	88	.29
Kappa	0.	88	0.9	91	0.	81	0.	84

The area information for each class was calculated in hectares (ha) and the results are given in Table 4. Agricultural areas are presented as total of cultivated and non-cultivated agricultural areas. Considering the Table 4, wetlands were 133.92 hectares in 1988. After the Sır dam started to operate in 1991, wetlands increased by 1323.63 hectares in the first ten-year period. When the second and

third ten-year periods were examined, a decrease of 851.31 hectares and 23.31 hectares was observed in wetlands, respectively. In the thirty-year period there has been a decrease of 7204.9 hectares of agricultural land. An increase of 500 hectares in forest areas and 4867.4 hectares in artificial surfaces have been observed. Also, industrial areas increased 35.3 hectares.

LU/LC Classes	1988 (ha)	1998 (ha)	2008 (ha)	2018 (ha)
Wetlands	133.9	1457.5	606.2	582.9
Bare Soil- Rocky Area	2565.1	4726.71	2916.1	3618.5
Agriculture Area	25142.2	20115.1	20579.7	17937.3
Industrial Area	752.9	425.6	965.5	788.2
Artificial Surface	1899.2	3090.9	5090.2	6766.6
Forest	1690.7	2368.4	2026.5	2190.4

Table 4. Area of LULC classes for each year.



Fig. 4. LULC change detection maps from 1988 to 2018 Scope of the study, in addition to the 30-year change

between 1988 and 2018, change maps were prepared in 4 different periods (Fig.4). When the change map from 1988 to 2018 is analyzed, it is seen that the city shows great development, especially in the West direction. It can also be said that there is a considerable expansion in the East and South-East direction. It can be seen that artificial surfaces caused a great decrease in agricultural areas. In parallel with the expansion of the city area, it is seen that a large amount of agricultural land has disappeared.

Population data from the Turkey Statistics Institute (TUIK) was obtained to demonstrate the relationship between population growth and urban development (TUIK: URL-2). The relationship between population and urban area expansion was given in Fig. 5. When the figure is examined, it is seen that artificial surfaces increase in parallel with the increase in the urban population.

Fig. 5. The relationship between population and artificial surfaces

The speed and direction of urban development are essential in terms of future city planning. In this study, changes occurring in the 30 years in Kahramanmaraş were investigated with Remote Sensing techniques. One of the most important results occurring in the region between the years 1988-2018 is the decrease in the agricultural areas, while the increase in the residential areas is observed regularly. Due to the continuous increase in the population of Kahramanmaraş, agricultural areas are destroyed. The continuous decrease of these agricultural areas may interpret that the city has been converted into urban areas to meet the settlement needs. As a result of this transformation, it has been clearly observed that agricultural areas are used irregularly and land management plans for these areas should be made.

5. CONCLUSION

In this study, the temporal change of LULC classes of Kahramanmaraş city center was investigated. Accordingly, Landsat satellite images were used in 10-year periods between 1988 and 2018. Satellite images for each year was classified by the SVMs algorithm. The direction and amount of urban development is revealed through the obtained maps. In this context, the artificial surfaces in Kahramanmaraş city center have increased by 304% in the 30-year period. While this increase was realized, especially a large amount of agricultural land disappeared. When the growth in the artificial surfaces is

compared with the population data, it is seen that the urban areas increase with the increase in the population.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This article has been selected from the papers presented at the TUFUAB-2019 (10. Turkey National Photogrammetry and Remote Sensing Technical Symposium)

REFERENCES

Başel, H. (2011). Türkiye'de Nüfus Hareketlerinin ve İç Göçün Nedenleri. Journal of Social Policy Conferences, 0 (53), 515-542.

Cohen, J. (1960). A coefficient of agreement for nominal scales. Educational and psychological measurement, 20(1), 37-46.

Congalton, R. G., & Green, K. (1999). Assessing the accuracy of remotely sensed data: Principles and practices.

Çölkesen İ., (2009). Uzaktan Algılamada İleri Sınıflandırma Tekniklerinin Karşılaştırılması ve Analizi, Yüksek Lisans Tezi, Gebze İleri Teknoloji Enstitüsü, Mühendislik ve Fen Bilimleri Enstitüsü, Gebze.

Demirci D.A., (2007). Destek Vektör Makineleri ile Karakter Tanımı, Yüksek Lisans Tezi, Yıldız Teknik Üniversitesi, Fen Bilimleri Enstitüsü, İstanbul, 13-53.

Demirkan D. Ç., (2017). Hierarchical land use and land cover classification of Sentinel2-A images and its use for corine system / Sentinel-2 görüntülerinin hiyerarşik yöntem ile arazi kullanımı ve arazi örtüsü sınıflandırılmasının yapılması ve corine sisteminde kullanılması, Yüksek Lisans Tezi Orta Doğu Teknik Üniversitesi, Fen Bilimleri Enstitüsü, Jeodezi ve Coğrafi Bilgi Sistemleri Anabilim Dalı

Denizdurduran M., (2012). Uzaktan Algılama Yöntemleriyle Kahramanmaraş İli'nin Arazi Kullanım ve Arazi Örtüsü Özelliklerinin İncelenmesi, Yüksek Lisans Tezi, Kahramanmaraş Sütçü İmam Üniversitesi, Sosyal Bilimler Enstitüsü, Kahramanmaraş.

Ekercin S., (2007). Uzaktan Algılama ve Coğrafi Bilgi Sistemleri İntegrasyonu ile Tuz Gölü ve Yakın Çevresinin Zamana Bağlı Değişim Analizi, Doktora Tezi, İstanbul Teknik Üniversitesi, Fen Bilimleri Enstitüsü, İstanbul.

Eray O., (2008). Destek Vektör Makineleri ile Ses Tanıma Uygulaması, Yüksek Lisans Tezi, Pamukkale Üniversitesi, Fen Bilimleri Enstitüsü, Denizli, 55-90.

Ercan, O. (2020). Essentials of A Sustainable Land Use Planning Approach for Rural Areas and A Model Proposal to Be Applied Under Turkish Conditions. Turkish Journal of Engineering, 4 (3), 154-163. DOI: 10.31127/tuje.650238

Esetlili, M., Bektas Balcik, F., Balik Sanli, F., Kalkan, K.,

Ustuner, M., Goksel, C., Gazioğlu, C., Kurucu, Y. (2018). Comparison of Object and Pixel-Based Classifications for Mapping Crops Using Rapideye Imagery: A Case Study of Menemen Plain, Turkey. International Journal of Environment and Geoinformatics, 5 (2), 231-243.

Geography of Kahramanmaraş, URL1: https://kahramanmaras.bel.tr/kesfedin/kahramanmarasincografyasi (Accessed 29 Apr 2020).

Göksel, Ç, David, R, Dogru, A. (2018). Environmental Monitoring of Spatio-Temporal Changes in Northern Istanbul using Remote Sensing and GIS. International Journal of Environment and Geoinformatics, 5 (1), 94-103. DOI: 10.30897/ijegeo.410943

Göksel, C, Doğru, A. (2019). Analyzing the Urbanization in the Protection Area of the Bosphorus. International Journal of Engineering and Geosciences, 4 (2), 52-57. DOI: 10.26833/ijeg.446912

Hegazy, I. R., & Kaloop, M. R. (2015). Monitoring urban growth and land use change detection with GIS and remote sensing techniques in Daqahlia governorate Egypt. International Journal of Sustainable Built Environment, 4(1), 117-124.

IŞIK, Ş. (2005). Türkiye'de Kentleşme ve Kentleşme Modelleri. Ege Coğrafya Dergisi, 14 (1-2), 57-71. Retrieved from https://dergipark.org.tr/en/pub/ecd/issue/4878/66933

İderman E., (2006). Salamis Antik Kenti ve Çevresinin Uzaktan Algılama ve Coğrafi Bilgi Sistemleri Kullanılarak Tarihsel ve Güncel Arazi Kullanımları Yönünden İncelenmesi, Yüksek Lisans Tezi, Çukurova Üniversitesi, Fen Bilimleri Enstitüsü, Adana.

Jenness, J., & Wynne, J. J. (2005). Cohen's Kappa and classification table metrics 2.0: An ArcView 3.x extension for accuracy assessment of spatially explicit models. Open-File Report OF 2005-1363. Flagstaff, AZ: US Geological Survey, Southwest Biological Science Center. 86 p.

Jimoh, R, Afonja, Y, Albert, C, Amoo, N. (2018). Spatio-Temporal Urban Expansion Analysis in a Growing City of Oyo Town, Oyo State, Nigeria Using Remote Sensing and Geographic Information System (GIS) Tools. International Journal of Environment and Geoinformatics, 5 (2), 104-113. DOI: 10.30897/ijegeo.354627

Karakuş, P, Karabork, H, Kaya, S. (2017). A Comparison of the Classification Accuracies in Determining the Land Cover of Kadirli Region of Turkey by Using the Pixel Based and Object Based Classification Algorithms. International Journal of Engineering and Geosciences, 2 (2), 52-60. DOI: 10.26833/ijeg.298951

Kavoglu, T., & Colkesen, I. (2009). A kernel functions analysis for support vector machines for land cover classification. International Journal of Applied Earth Observation and Geoinformation, 11(5), 352-359.

Kavzoğlu, T., & Çölkesen, İ. (2010). Destek vektör makineleri ile uydu görüntülerinin sınıflandırılmasında

kernel fonksiyonlarının etkilerinin incelenmesi. Harita Dergisi, 144(7), 73-82.

Kumar, P., Gupta, D. K., Mishra, V. N., & Prasad, R. (2015). Comparison of support vector machine, artificial neural network, and spectral angle mapper algorithms for crop classification using LISS IV data. International Journal of Remote Sensing, 36(6), 1604-1617.

Leichtle, T., Geiß, C., Wurm, M., Lakes, T., & Taubenböck, H. (2017). Unsupervised change detection in VHR remote sensing imagery–an object-based clustering approach in a dynamic urban environment. International Journal of Applied Earth Observation and Geoinformation, 54, 15-27.

Mondal, A., Kundu, S., Chandniha, S. K., Shukla, R., & Mishra, P. K. (2012). Comparison of support vector machine and maximum likelihood classification technique using satellite imagery. International Journal of Remote Sensing and GIS, 1(2), 116-123.

Oruç, M., Marangoz, A. M., & Karakış, S. (2007). Pan-Sharp Landsat 7 Etm+ Görüntüsü Kullanılarak Piksel-Tabanlı Ve Nesne-Tabanlı Sınıflandırma Yaklaşımlarının Karşılaştırılması, 11. Türkiye Harita Bilimsel ve Teknik Kurultayı, ODTÜ, Ankara, 02-06.

Otukei, J. R., & Blaschke, T. (2010). Land cover change assessment using decision trees, support vector machines and maximum likelihood classification algorithms. International Journal of Applied Earth Observation and Geoinformation, 12, S27-S31.

Orhan, O., Dadaser-Celik, F., Ekercin, S. (2019). Investigating Land Surface Temperature Changes Using Landsat-5 Data and Real-Time Infrared Thermometer Measurements at Konya Closed Basin in Turkey. International Journal of Engineering and Geosciences, 4 (1), 16-27. DOI: 10.26833/ijeg.417151

Sandal, E. K., & Karademir, N. (2013). Kahramanmaraş'ta Yeşil Alanlarin Yeterliliği ile Halkin Beklentilerinin ve Bilinç Düzeyinin Belirlenmesi. Doğu Coğrafya Dergisi, 18(29), 155-176.

Thanh Noi, P., & Kappas, M. (2018). Comparison of random forest, k-nearest neighbor, and support vector machine classifiers for land cover classification using Sentinel-2 imagery. Sensors, 18(1), 18.

TUIK URL2:

http://tuik.gov.tr/UstMenu.do?metod=temelist (Accessed 29 Apr 2020).

Tok E., (2006). V-I-S Modeli ile Uzaktan Algılama Verileri Kullanılarak Kentleşmenin İzlenmesi, Yüksek Lisans Tezi, İstanbul Teknik Üniversitesi, Fen Bilimleri Enstitüsü, İstanbul.

Üstüner, M., Şanli, F. B., Abdikan, S., Esetlili, M. T., & Kurucu, Y. (2013). Kirmizi-Kenar Ve Yakin Kizilötesi Bantlarinin Ürün Deseni Siniflandirma Doğruluğuna Olan Etkisinin Araştirilmasi: Rapideye Örneği. Türkiye Ulusal Fotogrametri ve Uzaktan Algılama Birliği VII. Teknik Sempozyumu (TUFUAB'2013), Trabzon, Türkiye, 23 Mayıs 2013, ss.1-5

Vapnik, V. N., (1995). The Nature of Statistical Learning Theory Springer-Verlag, New York.

Yang, C., Everitt, J. H., & Murden, D. (2011). Evaluating high resolution SPOT 5 satellite imagery for crop identification. Computers and Electronics in Agriculture, 75(2), 347-354.

Yuan, F., Sawaya, K. E., Loeffelholz, B. C., & Bauer, M. E. (2005). Land cover classification and change analysis of the Twin Cities (Minnesota) Metropolitan Area by multitemporal Landsat remote sensing. Remote sensing of Environment, 98(2-3), 317-328.

CONTENTS

PRODUCTION OF NEW TYPE INSULATION MATERIAL: EXPANDED
Ömer Guler, Oykum Basgoz and Cagdas Yavuz102
CLIENT SATISFACTION AS PERCEIVED BY ARCHITECTS AND CIVIL
ENGINEERS Hilmi Coskun and Sezer Sancar107
MICROSTRUCTURAL ANALYSIS OF ZnO-CuPc NANOCOMPOSITES SYNTHENISED BY HYDROTHERMAL METHOD Rekawt Khdir Hamad, Canan Aksu Canbay and İskender Özkul
MODELING AND SIMULATION OF DYNAMIC MECHANICAL SYSTEMS USING ELECTRIC CIRCUIT ANALOGY Mehmet Akbaba
INTEGRATED AHP-FMEA RISK ASSESSMENT METHOD TO STAINLESS TANK PRODUCTION PROCESS Seçkin Çeliker, Esra Saraç Eşsiz and Murat Oturakçi127
PIONEERING INSTITUTIONS IN SECTOR ON REAL ESTATE APPRAISAL Fatih Taktak and Mahir Serhan Tem17
TEMDODAL MONITODING OF LAND USE/LAND COVED CHANCE IN

ISSN 2587-1366

TURKISH JOURNAL OF ENGINEERING

TUJE